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Review of the Year's Activities

Infroducing The BRIT School

The BRIT School's n
in the arts. The ethos

)
]

o Tl Ty

lonisto prepare

young people for careers

5 for all young people, regardless of

background to be original, responsible, inclusive,

ambitious cnad kind.

The Values
of The BRIT School

The Mission
of The BRIT School

The BRIT School's mission |t o oller a vocallanal sduealion
and academle achlevement. I seeks fo sslect opplconis
wha demonslrale the Intentlon and aplifude 1o make a
Corear in e pﬂim‘n‘llng_ crealive or digial ars. in crder 1o
equip ils sledenis for o Ble In lhe ereallve prolessions, the
School seak ba:

* choase quatfications which will develop both practical and
academic skills: including those relating to wider knowledge of the
ereative industries fe,g. copyright, 1P, busimess),

+ eniune that Wudents are sware of the range of careees avallable
waithir the arts;

= mmantain & bigh lesel of personal experience of warking In the
créative industibes within the staff:

= mraintain teckeical faciBties at a bevel which will enable industry-
ridervarit shills Lo be taught. This inchudes studias for muslc, dance
gl theabne as well as radio, film and TV studics, prafessional
recording equipment, stage Byhting, siage tound, computers
with up-to-date software, woekshops to bulld full sets and props,
wardrobe departmeents with materials and sguisment.

« maintain links with the creative industrins, heth through its
spangor, The BRIT Trust, and efsewhers, in onder o keep abreast
af developments and support students offering abundant
appartunities in arder o gain experience and 48 and Lo prepare
them for the future wosbd af werk,

In 2024, The BRIT School wos awarded an
Artsmark Flatinurm Award by Ars Councll England
bosed on these ndings:

The BRIT Schoal offers a truly exceptional education in the
performing arts. The st of Alumniis hugely mpressive as

is the proport on of students who goan te forge carsers in
the creative industries, One focus during your first Artsmark
Jourmey has bean an equality, diverdty and inchision and your
commitment is deepdy embedded, Admissions procedunes
hawe been revised and have impacied 5 rangly on the size

ol your Glabal Majority cohort. Students have been trained
a5 poer mentons and a5 pasl ol your reimenied Coammunity
pesipramene, students have dellvered worlkshops o 17 local
commmanity gradps, Studeid svmgcship of teeir leaming i
furdamental ta your pedagogy, which iz Bullt o the BRIT
Characteristics Wheel, You are stronghy engaged with local
schaals and with the Barough. The BRIT Schoal i deing
waonderful work and it i important that this & understood
arwl celebrated more widely.®
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Our Impact

We measure our success by
examination results, the inclusive
make up of our student cohort,
the destinations and career
Joumeys of our alumni and

the reach and visibility

of the school.
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Examination Results 2024

T Fagh educaticne dandards of The BRIT School ane illestrated by the national
examination reculis. Al Post 16, siudents commit 1 a ngorous curiculum spesialging in

& parrBoerming or crnaliee iy WAL Lol 3 Extended Diploma, wiick 5 equialsst 1

3 Lewvels and some students also undestake addibional A Levels. In August 2026, students
acheved the best set of resulls moowe 33 vears Lo dale ard weell sboue matione] benchmmhs
for the number of Distéscthons ackieved {TT5%) far the WAL Lovel 3 Extended Diplama which
15 the haghest possibie grade and i the egunalenl of three A%t a2 & Level This i a 349,
iy an 2003 resalts

Thep BRIT Schacd, 340 had excephionally slrong A Level residls noluding

= BE.7T AMC grodes (FE T |
» §0.4% A"-B grades | I

AL Eay Stage &, 28 % of our studerts have achiesed grades 9-7 acrass all core (20SE sufijects
whichs is in Ging with the natsanal average wilh 90% achieving a % or above in English and
T0% prherwing prade L or abiove o Maths. In Che Perfarmeng Arts B0% of students gamed
the top orace of Distinctdan.

Student Destinations

Thie Careers Teary wack and monder sludents gradualing from Years 13 and 16

In A0FY. GE% af slisdemils were glaced @ edueylan LF aiuig &F mploymsnk werlbhin

Ehraw meandihs of leawing The BRIT School. Th schaol Wit Saardosd The Doy i Coredrd
stenand s for deliveiing il's mbiaban ‘Lo prepare youndg peope Tor caresrs nthe aris.®
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Alumni Success

Since cpenign 1991, The BRAT Schaclhas traned ceer 13000 young artly, 0% of wehom
are st warking in ko erastes indudines, and 67% of thase tnom a Glabal Majority el age,
Thie BRI Scheools alammamciuds ome of Brbar's most succesahid perbarmiers on slags,
serien ardd in musicand 1echnical Thealoe experls working on e world's bigges] ovenls
sncluding the Olymplcs, Eurowsion, Stadivm Towrs inthe UK ard beyond

Alumni have spld ovee #50 mBion alburns, generated 68 8 billon strearas’ s have waon
poleckively 47 Figh- profile awards including Gramursys, BRIT Awards, BAFTAS, Omcars anel
Dvaer Awsards, Same, e Adele and Tom Hollsnd, hove reached inte rnationa) Game, This voar
RAYE ven & rocord broaking ux BRIT Awards a4 woll a1 becoming arm of tha first acts to win
5 BAIT Bibaa Award_ond hat receied an AN Rdspendsnt Masc Seard, var Moves o Saand
andl o Géobal Avwaed Otber Artints contiibulng Lo over E50 millicn alluims snd G8.8 HRish
stredm inchade: Cal Burng, ELG Cyee, FEA Teiga, s oo Hedp, Bae Ternpadl, Kalie Metua,
Loyle Camner, (v Dean, The Feebng ard the Kooks,

Tha BRIT School reachas far wider Inon mausic and doe 1o e mull-orts

disciplines lough! al the School aumnd work across all locels of The

creabive industries including

« Raine Allen Miler: film deector of By Lone grossed $1.5m
{11 ?'u:lull:l.ll_.llnl tem UK aned tpalanil oz of es

s Kob Sorentl: flm drector of The Xodak Qucen seen online by
miliars of peapie arauivd 1he warlg angl sheed 1 o Recharg
Brandon. Fednesdey won First Prize &f the Shon Cuts Flm

Festivalin Cologne. Germany » Qb Inca: theatre dracter and winnes of the BEC Perletming

firls Fediow Nevaedd (S015), Gerse sis Fufaie Direc bor Aveard (2016),

Aihra Kely Blue: recerned sn Oscar nomiraticn for thedr
prosiBetcs for Helen Mirmen in Coldo in the Harstylng £ Makeup
categoey fer oelpwariang three years i the ndusfry

Kol Cannon: ligving toch for Beyonoe™s Rengsssanoe Jooy
and for Qlvia Rodhigo at 21 vears of age

+ emma Lakmey: broadoaiber, author and presented on
Radia 1 sl Radio G was avwarded o Soey Golds

Clle Fist™s * 50 Game Cirangerss of Mo (20190 asd the Pater sl
Bursary Sward [2020]

+ Lausa Dockrlll: auther of &1 boaks pablshed nvchading
What howe (oone £, and children’s boohs (hanoy Burdaork
Sheartlssed Tor tne Wateeslones” Boak al the ¥oar price ased
has tedce beon nominated for the Casnegie Medal
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Community Impact

Thee BRIT SChoo] oolivered o free Coeaing dutreach pragramme aeer Ehe year to over 1.000
people veorking n pa tnership wath local schools, woinerable adull groups and yeung peopls

al sk PRUSE This creative wark endches lvesand brings ast whore it is eeoded mast acroes
Crayden and its surrounding baroughs, T80 children aged 2-5 yoar teok part in Little People's
Dy i July 2026 Tmam T partnering schoedyfnimsories, B6% ol paticpating chideen were
lrm Glchal Mazonty background ard 15% of parlicipating childeen had special educalianal
gy, JOUY ol Lepohers sbiangy sgheed that Lhe evenl ntrodeced childien (o ey art foems,

hislped gal confidanse and bulld saoal deils

The BRIT Reach Fesoval, suppaited by Arts Counol England (ACE) engaged 458 peoples from 19
Laiead s huees il CHERA N AT 1 T Ir'\-:J Mipachg, Parkingees LK, Lednadd Chadnes S od
Living (learning dsaksed adults], 5t John s Care Home (eldedy peapls including thase bving with
dementin), Lo parlicipst e in weekly warkdwaps and ihe festmal. The rrissan st o prodluce an
IRy Evant targalneg thase with barriors o at diisdvaniage. 95% of partikipands andyiar
paironng organsakions agreed or strongly agreed thist Uhey felt welceme and included

7375 of porticipants
waers hom Global Majanity
backgrounds

417 of porticipants had

special eduecotional needs
or dEsabililes

35% of school chidren were
eligible for Free 5chool Meaks
{Croydon averoge 275

. i vt il i BivlL f e e ds el feel

« ‘Wirlbelr Coordieaboe. 5 Joha's Care Hoing

2023/2024 School Activity:
Academic, Performing and Creative Arls

MNew Iniffalives

Thie DRI Schoal efes pird creatne and |:-c"1'-:-'rr'i'",| Bl strani

&1 Past 16 (s ordsle Shrands o Key Stage &) and a Full swle of

e il St oty i Ky Srage & and 5 of Leved 2 qualifcatnm,
GCSES, A% ang A Lavels.

AR Ky SEage L. Thete wer e 8 nuimber of scatdemic vy inglidivg Lrips
N0 exbplbiticns At Tre Bralsh Mugeurn, Sky Sudios, Mutevs of Brands,
The Tate plus trips s8read inclugng Berkn, Mew York, inchaard

& 5Ki trip to Franto.

Eltucs Belels and Cullure was inbroduced inkg the connoulum Lo Leach
rofificans edlieaton as well g celebeating all feligaons and Listhd and
explonng complex ethical issues There was a dedicated assombly and
duy ol workshaps ard panel wath mulie-faih beaclers

M Brand merw physacal educaton inidad e called BRITFIT was
deveiopad inpartnarskip with lkegal spaiing fanlties Marky FC

and Crowdon Legacy Yauth fone, Tho pracorammes has basn dedignid
specifically for Key $age & studenis o sieetehibepord traditionsd

PE and aiffers Babelboll, Foctball, Chmbing, Yoga, Bosing and Gym,
Stnedck & Tard urdlerpinnad Iy 3 wollhomg programme

T anaplily the student voece thene see 3 numbser of shadent-led foum
rifluideng Tho Alvg Adin Caribbnan Soeciely (AACS]) cendeal 1o our
rnpactiiol Equafily Devertty and Inchrson programme. The AACS led
o prathering he Global Magorty Celebration show, Ethics, Culiuses
wid Bl Feslival and the andval Black Moy Matiers asembly
Students. [tomm across the school marched at Pnde a=d partsopatedan
T arrreadl Dvaeg Show
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Art Strand specific activity highlights in 23/24:

Applied Theabre studenls tack a performance af an anli- knfe
orimd thoww [a local sohooli [ s daaranes o yoar B chlidran
They alon perfarmed ot Hyde Pack Beitish Summer Time fedtival
anel wearked wilh pariners mchubng Clickenshed and Moungbal len
Motpliee onthe isle of Wight

Film E Mocio Frodociien (FMP ) slodents graduced om localson
Teed Sh0e L Teirnd whikch weang screened a7 The Pringe Charles Cindma
in Cerdral London, The anrual Film & Medus Producton Shovcases
wiark Febd a4 Thee Rt ry Conveona in Brisban plos Beore wind o Doosdcadl
Week i the YouTube Music Studio and an the aireeth BRIT Radio
under Lhe manl cevhip ol Hapeerenl Raghia,

Inferac Bve Digital Design (DD ) studernts proceniad ¢ wdk
at a showcase supporibed by global crestive marketing agency RAFF
wiho awarded six shartisted sbedents with prines and profoisional
feedback, DD shudent s visited and recened maslerclasses from
Appdo, Fscape Studa, Dewign Mapeum, Brard Musoum, VEX
Fastival Framestone and Meta

Bonoe stwilents ook part in workihods willy Englsh Malions]
Ballet, Hafesh Shechiler Company, Mathanal Youlh Danee Company
and parlicipaled in Sacier Wels Making Moves Choseographic
praject. Students wene invited to perfonm a flashanod at Ahbey Road
Studics for the Ieenage Cancer Trust and performaed their final pear
ghisaain &t Fablield Halls. Faw dance studonts competod ke AN
Englang Dance - The UK Young Danoer Fanals aned Year 12 stwdent Al
Crirves wepn the compebtion, Boys dascr Grisup Hhegngs B hj ey
a fifteanth ttiple 10 mark a1 the Grard Finaks 34 All Cagland Dance
For Seniar Jare ! Madern Lange Ceoups

Mugle and Mankc Tech studests saged music shows moludng o
e an o mnired oo A ound Che worldd, & profesl shiw A 1980%
i ard 2 goapel chodr performad ot the Sound Loangs in Sutton and
bt el a numnber of gags al $asley Aels. 37 Music students played a8
tha Alteenstive Heead Escape in Brighton. Studenls received ane ta
s mentoging wikth 20 AEHs from bbels noluding 'Warnes, Polpdor,
Dypmire A oedds, Codumibaia Reconds ard] Bega Tune

Mutleal Theale slaged three (nal productions fos Year 133

e o, Dl cnd e Bliro ! and fiak Modical Thoatog siudents
were imvolved n the production of fomgids at The Lyric Hasnmersmith
antl appearad an screens n Lhe show as the Onlne Global Fan Chnoos

Thealre producad 1o E'.:I:r!-ll'l FEDAFTOry Ovar Four wapks 35 part
ol thee Comman Grownd seavon, supporicd by Prodecion Arls
Strand. Ten now devited prodisctions epened at Brinton Houde as
part of Theatre Strand's Sprimgboand Seasar The Year L& Bridge
Comgany poe formed Dao now deviaod shioan: Spares and Bl ' at
Wew Deprama and worsshopped the shows in New vork, The Year 12
SkakEspaare Sadon o Uie BRIT Tl ool door slage sl e wohoal
pearfarmnd o cvar TOO peaplo

Wizual Arts & Design siusdents have prinered with Shelter and
he'd @ faskilon show in Caal Drap ¥ard Samsung budlckng boralse
wial funds for komebesaness. Faskeos slidents veeal Lo Dr. Marbend
lactary 1o design tholr own ahaos Stk s have Pad vt to Print
Chisls Lamdan, Royal Academy of Arts and Matlensl Partrait Gallery,
Burtsgrry are mn Lhe seeoqd weir 34 Prncapal Pacirer lar ihe Faskeon
Stylng arsd Textiles rowle, provideng barsarics and masterclasses.

Pooduchon At sbudenis sl Their mepal epis prackiclion yel
an mmeruwe axperience based om the probloms f:-r.:m} tha wearid's
gl Loday walh 3CUeat argansabipn O ean Gangrpdion, Thay
alsd warked on |he Srakespeare Seakon in The BRIT Trast Spen a
theatre, & Danes ibcacsie ot Fairfeld Halls, Apalied Thaatre ihow.
Musical Theatie and Theatre seasons pluay supporbing ewery fnee
production, event and aexdhibssion (T8 lickeled productiand through
bax office DMCE plus smaller shanings and in-haime events and
assemdling]. Students had professiona opporiendios for warking on
the BRIT Avwards with Bntanria Row, on Vogue Warld London and
had wisils Lo PRG, Alesander McQueean, Theatre and Opera shaws
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Indusiry Activity:
partnerships,
opportunities
and sponsors

The BRIT Schogl 2 Eonnle Scall™s: jash 5_'||:rf,|:|r CBE ., Chaer of
BEIT Sehaal Trustees, hodted a lundrasing event at Bearis Sooft's in
Jure, Curiend Sludent Sam Wilonson perlormed alongade alumnae
Batie Melus sod Olnda Dian Gpec tuedd weith Jash and S9usel Warden)
st Berger had a published Op Ed in the Evening Standasd and the
evend, raised signifigant Tunds Tor Lhe School

The Ofher Songs Live af The Pallodivm: BRIT Schaol Trustes
Al whebleer and his publisking company The Othe: Sangs praduted
& RONERATIDING ewens in Moy vith speial guests Bermio Taugin, Cal
Blevens, Mar Baehier Skhanng the stage with theas legendy wene
g Euirriind Music $tacengs, Sam Wilkinson and Roemdag So0ran,
The event rased money from ticket zabes for the schoal

HRIT Awoards AcBvily 2034- campalgn vl h Mastercand far lhed
wear rusieng. students were briefed by MoCann £ Mastercard e
inlerprie] Dk Masleocard some oo Lhroegh thes chasen arlfarm
of dance, musar. dedngn, ostume and lustration Their 2ok wald
drplayed during TV adher | beeaks 33 idents and arownd the OF on
soreend o Thie BRIT Awsards

Indutiry Opparivnilies: The BREIT Schood s an industry school
aretl uzilises ity wide netwark af mdustey professionals Lo inspee o
sedents throwgh a programme of QiAs, masterclasses and BRIT
Talks, These micheled Haly Bragg, Landva Blaces, Chos Brgand M
Lexd Monman Foater, joha Danty dnventor of Garagohand 31 Apple).
Carcine #ush I0ED of Betish Fashoan Coungl) designerns o
Brirlepniy anil Doc Maitans

BRIT Expetience Daoys ai parl

BRIT For Buslness Commercial offer

Speorts LK, dston Willa, English Cricket Board, Chelsea FC, RFU and
Foundlation for Leagership throsgh Sport haee all pakd (or trairing
away days at the School 1o learn more aboul talent deve lopmiend

Our Supporters

The BRIT School i prowd Lo acknowdiedge the importance of our
donasy, sgronsaes and suppartors, withos whom o woel woulbd

HEMpiy n0f 0o possiole

Lorsgediewons Fumsthineg Troom our good Teisndh at Thae BRIT Teast and
organis ations inchedng the Andrew Lioyd Webber Fowndation,
Burberry, Lewerhubme Toust, Mastescascl, Ulley Foundatsan ard
armor Music LK isvtal o the stabildy of Che organsation
However we were alsg thrifled 1o welcome rew supporters durng
thi year - |Il§.|l]q_|ll'-|l| Cieywnipea, Fifl arel PRS - arel weero ||gh:1||'i|.'~:|

o see others - guch ag the Dr Marters Faundation, Mackntagh
Feurdlakion and Wiggin Chantalsle Trnl - deepen

thiir comenibment.

KT “.H:I:al'l;l- Fiirechiadsa v Eweil, e BRI 5 bl [ e Sogll’y

i Junaz, saw & ircredibile respanso 1o our Call-Ta-actlan, stk

Lharis io avery one of the guedts whe came thal night and pledged
lsded SibSa . Thie Evem] venllddin 'l hise Do én podtbli s ot The
geneqosty of e and effort from our Chainman, josh Berger CBE,
and Iriench, I parlioular, vie would ke Lo ascknomledge Sally Greene
[HE Por slidneing us 10 use the itarie measic venwe, and to her
weanderful teamiwho made the reght such o sucoess. A, of course,
ouir ingredible slumnae Katic Mol aned 0l Diean vwhn a4 ded Thpic
WOIDEE D0 Ahiat Was SUCh 3 ool nigh

T U vy athes alumail, parents, phelarithropats aed gran gvees
wihia have supparbed our fundracsing efforts throughouwt this year
throagh your generasil y, thank yone
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Trustees’ Report

The Trusteas presend thelr annual report logether with the Financial Stetements
and audiar's repord of the chorttable company for tha year 1 September 2023 ta
31 August 2024, The onnual repor serves the purposes of both o Trustees' repord,
and a directors’ report and slralegle repor under company aw,

The BEIT School Limiled (fhe School) aperales o Clly College for the Technolagy
ol Ehe Arts ([CCTA] lor puplh aged 14 fo 19 serving o cofchment area mode up
al maosl ol Greater London and some pants of suburban Surrey and Kent,

Thie Sehool had a roll of 1456 In the school census on 3rd Oclober 2024,

Structure, Governance and Management

Consfitufion

Members' llability

Trusteas” Indemnities

Method of recrultment and
appolniment or election of Truslees

Palicies and procedurss adopted
far the induction and training af

Trushees

The School is & campany limed by guaranies snd an exempt charlty. The dharitable
company's memorandum and artiches of association are the primany goveming documents
of thae Schoal

The Trustees af The BRIT Sehool Limited are slio the Directors of the charitable company
far the purpsose af comparry Law, Details ol the Trustee, who sepsed during the year, and

to the date these Fimancial Statements are approved, are included in the Beference and
Administrative Dotalls on page 1

tach membaer af the charitable company undertakes to contnbute bo the assets of the
charitabde company In the event of It being wound up while they are a member, or within
one year sfter they cease (o be 8 member, such amount as may be requined, not sxcending
£10 for the debits and Rabilities contracted before arwithin ane year af wihon they ceased to
e 3 meirrriler

Mo indemnilies of guarantees have been provided to third parties by the charitable comparry
inrespect of 2y af @4 Trustees,

The Articles of Actocintion provide st the puirber of Trastees shall e pat bess than e sod
that o mare than 25 may be appeinbesd By the Trustees, altheugh Co-opled Trustees imay alse
be appointed by the Board of Trustees, The Asticles provide that two of the Trustees shall be
wlected by Farenss, and the Boaed of Trustees has determined that bwo will be elected by Staff,
Trustees are subject to retirement by rotation every thres years but are efigible for re-election
at the'maeting at which they retire, Staff Tnstees may serve Tof one térm af theee years and
enary et stard for re-plection, Parent Trustees may sevve Tor one term of thees pears, exoept
that thiey aee requined to resign by the 31 October after their child beaves the School

Thie Gowernance Committer ausesees the dills 1o be sought in recruiting nes Truatess o okils
awdit has been undertaken and |5 updated as Trustees join and leave the Board of Trustees.
Vacarscies in the Board of Trustoes are filled to address any shills gap disclosed by the skills audit,

Thir traindng @nd induction provided Tor nanw Trustees will depend on their mdsting experence,
Biew Trustess ane introcuced to the School and ta thel role a5 a Trustee by wisiting the School
o Feet L Principed and the Company Secretary, Thiry are offered suitable external training,

I addition, they aee given the following dooumsents to read; the Prospecius, the Schoal's
Aaticles of Association, the Funding Agreement with the DHE. the Schoal improvement Fan,
ke bisdipet for the cuimnent year, the latest Arnual Report and Financial Statements, thie Latest
mansgement acoomts sad.a Charily Commisaon publication for school governons, As rew
Trustees join the goverring body irregulary, induction i undertaken informaly and is taloned
specifically to the irdnadual.
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Organisational shuchure

Theee Ssnior Lesdershin Team (SLT) consisted of: the Principal, three Vice Principals, e
fuidrdant Principal, the Director of Communications and Director of People and Place, The
Director of Finance was inpast for heff the year, and was replaced bry 8 Chied Dperating
Ceficer in fsgust 2024, All soeas of the Schoal are dineotly aversee by a member of the SLT,
Thewider maragement team is involved In decisien making through regular meetings with
ther line manager, Learning Leadershin Group meetings for cumiculum leaders, Support
Management Group meetings for support leaders and tudor meetings,

The Principed |5 the Scheol's Accounting Dificer; as such he is responsible for satisFying himaeti
thiat the Scheol has appapiate pobeies and procedunes in place to ensune that the School's
resaurces are propedty contralled ard spplied. The Board of Trastees has delegated day to
clay respansibility for fnancial matters to the Chief Operating Officer, subject to the operation
of & fermnal wchemie af delegation and cwersight by the Principad and the Finance and Audit
Commiitee. The anmual bedget is reviewed by the Finance and Awdit Commitioe, which
recomimends its approval bo the Board af Trustess,

The Bosrd of Trustess has delegated authority coer the engagement and dismitesal of taf
[except for the Chief Operating Officer] bo the Principal, except that the Principsl must consult
with the Chair of Trustees before dismiding a mernber of @taff. The SLT a2 a body s responsible
T the identification of siaffing needs and the sppeintment af skaff, with a member of SLT
siting an the appemtment board for all permanent stalf, Respansibilty for perionnel rests with
the Principal. Appeintment bodrds lor management posis include a Trustes,

The organisational sfructure of subsidiaries

BRIT Schoaol Productions Llimited

Thie BHIT Schood has a 100% wubsidiary company, BRIT School Productions. Currendly, it ks
aperating umides the trading name of BT Far Business, BRIT For Business s managed by 3
managing director. The director is suppoeted by two staff whio are working predomnantly in
sabes and marketing,

Thie School owrs 100% of the issued ordinasy share capital of BRIT Scheal Productlons
Limsted, & comgary incanparated in England and Walps

[Campany No. 246847, The principal acthaty of the company continues ta

be= thal of generating funds from commersial actiifies for the benefi of

The BRAT Schoal, The two disectors of BRIT School Productions are Lalsen from

BAIT School's Trustees and members,

Arrangements for selting pay
and remuneralion of key
management personnel

The key management personnel comprises the 51T of the Schoal, As disclesed In Nete 17, na
Trugtee sthisr thar SUY Trusteed recebned any remuneration from the Schoal in the course
af thie year except the reclaim of reasonable exponses, Tha Trestees conferm that Staff
Trustees” salaries are calculated in the usual way, based on their pasiian en the relevant pay
scibe plus fin the case of teaching staff) amy Teaching and Leanning Responsibility paymen
retevant Lo any responsibiity they might hold.

The Principal’s salary was set on appaintmaent by the Board of Trustess on the sdvice af the
People and Place Committes, Although the School b a standalane institution, its position as
cne of tha most high-profile schools In the country, inked ba ane ol the most high-prafie
and image-asare Industries, puts partioular pressure on the Sehool's Principal: they need
niat anfy te b an acoomplished educaber, but alsa highly knowledgeable acrass the arts,
palitically waeare and adept at cammunicating Lo a wide range of audsences, Consegquintly,
the stasting salary was benchmarked against the Principals and CEQs of other compiles
educations! institutions. A pay tcale was established an appaintmaent, with progress
depenident upan the achissement of appraisal objectives, as dentified by the Principal’s
Performance Management Committee; this annual review b averseen by the Peaple snd
Mace Committes and approved by the full Board of Trustess.

The sslarhes of the other members of 5LT are set on the Leadership Scale, based ana
reasonalyle differentral from the Principal, bearing in mind that the particular [FEEiLITES

af the Schaol apply to all of 5LT fo seme extent. Progress up the scale s governed by the
sarmet rules as the rest of SLT. On appointment these salarles wene benchmarked sgainst
similar roles then being sdvertizod: progeress up the Lesdesship Scale B dependent upan
the achievement af apprabal abjectives, as ddertified by the Principal; this snnual review is
averseen by the People and Place Committes snd spproved by the full Board of Trustees,
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Trade Union Focility Time

‘Mumber of employeas who were
redevant vinion olficlals during lhe
refevant period

?

Relevant undon olficialz

Parcentage of lime spent
an facllity Hme

Percentage of flmea

i

1% - 50%
51% - 99%
| 100%

Farcentoge of poy bill speni Tnhl Eml uﬂ-u:m? l.n“
an faclity Hime

TotolPaybll

Fnﬂ:nlun-u. d' 'rM fotal pay bill spent
an facility fime

Pald trade union ochivitles Tirme meﬁfm pald frade unlon
acliviies as a percentage af babal
pakd lacllify Hime howrs,

Related Parlies and other
Connected Charities and Organisations

The School recelves annual denalions from ils sponsor, Ihe Brilish Record
bndustry Trisk (The BRAT Trust), One of The BRIT Trust's Truslees was alia

Teustes of the School al some paint in the yeaor. In eccepling this donalion,

fhe School has nol breached ony of the requiremeants of ihe ESFA's Acodemies
Financial Hondbook, which apply fo the School despile its stalus a5 o CCTA,
The sponsor and the wider Indusiny also offer substanilal support In kind, for
which the School i very graleful,

Engogement with employees

{including disobled persans) rnainitain or develop srangements aimed at-

11

| Full-time equivalent employes

number
2

Number of Employees

The follmwing statement summanses action laken during the perad 1o intraduce,

= providing employvess with information on matters of concern ta them

= consulting erployess or their representatives reqularty so that the views of employees
can be considered in making decisions which are Boely to affect thelr infterests

 Encouraging the irvalvement of employees in the School's performance
# gehibEving a common swansness on the part of all employess of the factors sffecting

e performance af the School.

= the School's policy in respect of applications for employmient from disabled
persand, the breatment of employess who become disabled and the trening, career

divelapment and pramotian of disshiled

[t it

The Schoal places immense value on the invelvement of its smployees and has continued
fo keep them irfanmed on mstters sffectng them as employess snd on the sarious factons

affecting the perfarmance of the School Thisi
meetings. team briefings and inkernal bulleting

5 achieved through farmal and infosmal
and updates, Employer representatives ane

constitted requiary on a wide range of matters affecting their curent and fulure teredds.
In respect of disabled persons, the policy of the School is Lo suppart recruitmeent and retention

af students, stalff and Trustees with disabilities,
and door widths are adeguate o enable wheel

Lifts, ramps and ditabled toilots ane insLafied
chair access 1o all the madn areas of the School

The School does this by adapting the physical envronment, making suppar resources
avallable and thecugh rebevant training. Dur policy Is to promote the career development and
promotion of dsabled persons, imespective of the nature of thel disabdity and we will provide
whabever assistance we reasonably can do in erder bo suppos the indivddusl in meating their
caress goals, ensuring that thene i o level plasgdng field for sl
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Engogement with suppliars,
customers and others in

o business relalionship with
the School

Thi Schaod recagnises the nmportance of imasrLaining good busine<s relationships with B2
supgliers. \We have a clear procunement policy Lo erdure that suppliers are treated inan
even-handed reanner, The parformance af and relaticnship with key suppliers is constantly
maretored 1o eriue thal we treal suppliers [irly, ensuring that paymend terms are adhered
b st thal we camply with contractual obligations placed wpon the Schooll Wi enoounage
anopen and angeing dalsguee with supplicrs to ensurn that we conduct our business with
them in a professional commercial manner,

Objectives and Activities

Cur olxlects and aims, described belaw, pul students al Fhe heart of all that
wi do. We have described our maln echisvements within the Review of the
Yeaor's Aclivilies and also how we have peformed against our objecives,
We are commiled ta ensuring thal wie mainiain shong and effective
relatianships with students, parents ond wider siokehalders In fhe communiby.

Objects and aims

Objectives, strotegies
and activities

The principal object of the chamable company & “to advance for the public benefit
education in the United Kingdeen, in particudar but witheut prefudice to the generality of
the: feregoing, by establishing, malntalning, carmying en, managing and developing a schaol
affering a broad curriculum with a strong emphasis en the perfonming s and related
technology”, the alm being 1o provide the highest possible standsrd af education and
pastaral cans, magdmising the life-chanoes of the dudems of the Schial,

Creathity s oruclal to the fufure of awr econanry and society. For aver thinty years, The BEIT
Sehodl has successfully nurtured crestie dhills in students from every tbype of background
alongsice 2 rabust and ull scademic curriculum. And it does <o for free,

Thir BRIT School revoluthanises the lives of its students; 98% af all students wha have
graduated find work in & Puge range of crestie industries or enred for highor education,
Win are proud 1o be 8 Craydon wohoal and equally prowd 1o hawe national and international
friends wha support the School with prafessional and unique opportunibies,

As e Good Scloel Guide states, “You'll find BRIT graduates” words, musle, perfonmance,
directaris and backstage falants just about evenywhene you look, from fashion shows to
rusicals, national theatre te community arts, in the UK and intematicnally,”

This is & harcheorking, fun, passionate school packed with dedicated Indnviduals who love
the erealive and performing arts and recognise the importance of a tharough and robaest
education in 3l subjects, We believe in developing well rounded, articulate, kind and
dynamic young peaple. It is both a shelter and a springboard,

The predominant acthdty of the charitable company s the operation of The BRIT Schoaol ko
provide wocational education foe pupils aeross the spectrum af academic shililies between
the ages of 14 and 19 with an emphasis on the performing, creative and dightal arts and
redated technology The main objectives af the Schaol are summarised below,
* Lo ratse the standard of educational achievement of all pupils;
* toensune that everny siudent enjoys the same high quality education in terms of
resalreing, luition and care;
* o dmprove the eff cetiveneds of the School by keeping the cuericulum and
arganisational structune under continual resiew:
* b preside valie lor meney for the fureds expended;
= o comply with all appropriate statutoey and curricuben requirements;
= tomalrtain close links with mdustry snd commerce;
= b further antistic and crestive educstion for children and young people, both in
Selhurst and further afield, by way of regular community classes [incuding the Schoal's
BRIT Kids iatwdap (lasies] and bespake programmes for partners;
* touse the School's crestive expertise inwider training for young people and adults;
* to conduct School busineis in sccordance with the highest andardy of integrity,
prabiy and spennes.
Thi Schaal's funding agresment with the Secretary of State for Education specifies,
amnongst other things, the basi for admitting students to the School, the catchment
2nea Trom which the students are drawn, and that the curriculum should comply with tha
substamce of the national curricutum with an emgphasis on the performing arts and their
techrlagies. The catchiment anea it mast of Greater London and parts of Sarrey and Kent.
Spetial consideration may be given to admitting students of particulas merit from cutside
the catchment arca, bt these mist total no mere than 1075 of the total inteke.
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Public benefif Thee Trustees have given consideration Lo the Charity Commisson's general quadance on
public benefit and in particular bo its supplementary pubilic benalit quidance on advancing
aducation,
in additian to the commitment Lo achieving the primary objectives of the Schoal, the
Tnstees have agreed for the foflowing public benefit suppent o be provided by the Schoal:

= Ta cantimes to develop the excellent pastorad care we pronsde For our pupils.

= Students are sebectod based upen thelr aptitude and commitment to the performing,
oreative or digital arts. taking no account of academic ability.

Sirategic Report

Achievements and performance

The School's achlevements are sef oul In “Revlew of the Year's Activilies",
2ed aul on pages 3-8,

Key Fnancial Peformance Indicalors

The Schad |5 committed fa achisving on its fnancial perfarmancs irdicators, (o ansure thet it conlinues ta strive for bath educational and
financlal excefience, The senlos leadership team have robust anmwal improvement plans which act a3 KPE and milestones, and are reported
against at board mestings,

Here are our key Financlal Pedformance Indicators

ke Target Perdormanca in 2023-2024
i.:l'-'l;-ll;l.ﬁl:aff Cd-l.h:l"rl:‘:u:.l'l.ﬁtlrlln:f mlﬂ.ETE_l"!!_-E. f‘;l _?ﬂ'_-ﬁ-ﬂ‘ﬁ Th%

| Tatal Staff Casts ta ESFA Revenwe Income ') s0% 10k

| % of Income raised through Fundraising 15% %

| "ﬁ- Tatal Rewenue Income spent GoAk 9%

Examination Fetults 2024 ase seloul in the Review of the Year s Actithes

Golng concem

After mading appropriate enguides, the Board of Trustees has a roasonable cupectation that the School has adequate resources to continue
in operational existence for the faresesable fiture, For this reason, i§ continues to adopt the going concesn hasis in preparing the fmancial
statements, Further details regarding the adoption of the gaing concesn basis can be found in the Statemont of Accounting Polides,

Ths Trustees ane fully canfident that the reputation of the School remalns strang,
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Financial Review

We receive our incorne from a mumber of different sources. The majorily of ouw income cames from central
gavernment via the Education and Skills Furdding Agency [ESFA] who provide us with our General Annual Grant (GAG),
based largely on our stisdent numbers, ta cover our stalfing and other general rurning costs, The ESFA may provide ui
with addticnal grants which are earmarked for specific purpases (such as Pupil Premium which must be used Lo raise
the attainment of dissdvantaged pupils). These appear in the accourts as DIEJESFA grants, Where we receioe grants
ar ather funding frem the Lacal Autharity (such as where we undertake responsibifities an their behall in respect

of our studenky) this appears in thi accounts as oiher government grants. Such income is collectively referned to as
“Restricted Funds®

Other incame is received from cur spongar, The BRIT Trust, owe fundraising activties, BRIT Kids subscriptions. parents
(for example as contributions to trips or ather costs) and fram third parties (for exsmple from our bank for interest

o aur account balances or from others who are charged for their use of our Tacilities), Such ather Income may be
restricted ar ureestricted, depending on whether it comes bo us weth conditiors as to its use or whether it is available
far spending at the discretion of the Trustees,

e hold funds in twe beaad categories, funds shich are availsble for spending and other funds which are not available
for spending, such as fived assets,

Spendable funids e In turn sub-categoried between those which are avallable for spending at the discretion af
Trustees (*Unrestricted Funds®) and those which are subject to condition o restriction, {"Restricted Funds™)

Funds not awailable for spending include the book value ol fixed assets such as Land, buldings and equipment. These
have avalue and ane, therefpee, inclinded 50 sgets in the accounts but, clearby, we cannot spend this value, In cammon
with all academies and local authoeities, our share af the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) surplus | (delan)
rraist also be reflected in our sccounts and as this & not a comventional asser | lability), 1 does not get included in
spendable funds. The Trest meets s obligatians in respect of the LGES by paying over pendion contributions due as
caloulatied by the scheme's actuaries.

The following balances were held 3t 31 Awsguest:

4

Fund Categary 2024
£'000
GhAG Hestricted General Funds
Other DIEJESFA Granls Restricted General Funds
Othes Income Restricted General Funds .
Sub-total General Resticled Funds =
ther Incoma Ureestricted General Fund 1.1:2%
Unszpent Capital Funds fiestricted Fized Assel Fund 353
Sub-Tokal Spendable Funds 1,492
Wit Bk Value of Fixed Asgets Ridtricted Fived Asset Fund 22647
Financa lease Restricted Foad Azset Find {7.665)

Share of LGPS Surplus | [Defici) Restricted Pension Reserve -

Talal Al Funds T4 449

During the year under rosfes there wis po movement (2027 decrease of E10k) on general restricted furds, a decrease of £33
{2023: increase of £252k) on wnrestricted funds due to a transfer o fund 3 capital profect, and after LGPS valuation adjustments,
depreciation and capital income and expenditure, an overall increase of E218K (202 3: decrease of £620K) on total funds.

.

L1152

314

1484

FEAGE
(7.543)

14,451

—
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Overall Result

The Schoal has had another successful year. Despite the challenging emiranmenL,
the Schock has generated Incomee of £1% .6 million (2023 £13.8 million) and an wirestricted
reserve of £1.1 millan (200 3: £1.2 million], This eguates to 7.59% (2023 8.6%) of total

This reserve is required to fund the School’s capital commitmeents and Lo invedt in sErategic

The School continues to receive high application levels Il-‘ulll.l'nﬂgnlﬂtt BCoeplance rales
im Ehen majority of cur cowrses. Whilst there is abways vncertainty around student naresbers
Iy b LUK, wae are confident that we are developing our courses to ensure the Schoal's
continupd sucoess, The Schol has robust financial madelling in place, and this has enatiled
us b ernbed an ebement of fexibility incar financlal plans which sfows us o respond ta the
camplex extemal ervdranment. We are confident that given the reputation of the Schaol,
thie brosd sppeal of the performing snd ereatioe course offering, the continued focus an
quality, and with increased fundraising success this yess, the financls futune of the Schaod

These factors not cnly contitbute significantly to our fnancial result for 2023126, they alsa
peosition us well as we identify our ambitions and crente our S-year strategy to 200252000,
In 202312k, the success of the CIF bid and slong fumdraizing perlonmance contributed to

Theee tortal expenitare has Increased by £0.9m from the prior year to £14 3m, largely drivven
by increazes in staff costs, The school undertock an extermal review of staffing across all
areas of the schoel This resulited in a Suppart Stalf reves, the appointment of the Chind
Operating Officer and a longer term resiew al our cusricufam sisian, informing our 5 year
strategy, Other operating expentes decreased b €3 Tm from E3L8m in the prar year The
suconssful CF bid yelded £7554 of government funding (o upgrade the healing system,
whichwill result in lower enorgy costs in the medium term, This is a significant invesbrmant

it is vital that the Sehool remains open bo talented students regardless of their background
or fnancial means. To suppedt thaie with higher traved costs and in hardshep, the Schood
offered a package af scholarships, bursaries and other wippodt to current students and
graduating students with spend tatalling £14Tk this year (£36k through funds raised, E111k

ncome.

prioritiog tved the coming yeaes,
Income

remains strandg,

hdgher incomae than the presvious year.
Expendifure

wihich will ghve huge henefit to the School over time,
Bursaries

fram the ESFA).
Ritk factars

These afe a hiimber of facters that are affecting, o will adversely affect, Schoot’s
fmancial situation,

General nflation; 'We contirue to meniter sur budgets to manage the wider

and significant gensval non-enengy inflation,

Energys Our ensigy ©ostd roe froe E240K n 22-23 to £330 In 23-24, & Increase of
12%. Eneergy costs remain high generally in Lhe scosorry, so although we hive fized price
condracts for the next two years, Ehis is a significant continiing rish. Whe heve Fnsested

in upgrades to our heating system, throwgh the EIFgrarl.Mir.hMllreﬁ.l:EM 221119
herwewer there is more Eo be done such as inoreased e of LEDHighting.
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Source of Income Where the Money Goes

@ ESFA Funding @ Teaching Relaled Stall Costs
Fundraising Support Stalf
® Commercial Income @ Running the Schoal

@ CIF and Caplial ncome

Staff Costs Non Stalf Costs

@ Teaching Relaled Stalf Costs @ Building including energy costs
Support Staff T
@ Teaching Related
& Cleaning and Catering
o Other Services

Summary

The Schoal's financial perfonmance is strong with a £1.1m wrestricted reserve, This enables the Schood to contirue te adapt guickly and
respond to the challenges in the changing education sector, The main engoing challorge for the education secter is erguring the pravision
of & high quality, inclusive education affering, using a finite set af resources, coupled with the impact of ever-changing currcutum and
aadmiinistrative demasnds.

Thie Trustees are clear that the consiraints of schoal funding mean that strabegies and warking practices will peed Lo be undsr constant
vt b protect School's long term financial stability. Trustees are commitied bo ensuring that the School enswnes that it is operating at
its most effbcient and wil hald the senior leadership feam to account ta deliver these efficiencies and walue for money.
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Reserves policy

Investmant policy

Principal risks and uncertainlies

Financial and risk moanagement
objeclives and policies

The Board resiews the bevel of redenses annilly, The redes encempesses the nature of
imcamee and expenditure dreamd, the need Lo match income with commitments and the
nature of the reserees. |t i the Schoals policy Lo maintain a surplus of unrestricied repernves
which cam be used to assist in funding the Schoal's developenent plan. The resene policy
calls for reserves ta be maintained ab E1m as a whobe, siming for E2im which will be redesed
armually. The Trustees will ansune that the resoress pelicy continues Lo confonm o the
requirements Laed down in the Academies Financial Handbook produced by the Education

arl Shills Funding Agency.

Thee Sehool resvieews its bevel of sunpls cash balances on a reguiar basts, i85 aim s o ensure
that the Schaaol does mat Enmediately need te cover anticipated expenditure; that are
considered For imweitment in such & way ad to radimise its income bt with minimed risk
Surphus funds are currently hedd on deposi.

Thee School i unlikeby to consider bond a8 higher risk mvestments are nat concilered

Lo hee im thee besl inlerest al the Schaol

The School does nol consides L imsestment af surplus funds as a primany acthity, rther
a5 a result of good stewardship and 24 and when circumstances allow, taking Ino account
provailing interest rates and the tme réquirerment 1o condider snd admintster funds

IMOURMNS,

The major risks boowhich the Schaol s seposed are;

= Lackof a clear and transparent Long -lerm funding commitiment for schools couplod
with recent years af cost-of-Inving crisis and high inlfation, ard greater than forecast
salary incroases, This exposes the School to the rigk of unpredicted finarcial shortfalls,
impacting tha quality of sducation that can be delhvered.

* [nauffecient support and funding in the education system forvulnerabie students,
especially those with speciol education needs. This impacts the School's abiigy to
prowide thase itudents with the support they need, snd also places an additional
fenancial constraing,

* Teachers” recristment diffioulties in some suboct areas, which impact on students’
outeomes, quality of the ediscation prowvisian, siaff costs and staff retention rates.

+ Insuffecient funding andfor resources Lo respand to growing cyber secunty nisks,

= insufficient funding to address ihe growing maintenance costs and compliance nesds
of our estate,

The Trustees have assessed the major risks bowhich the Schoal is eapoded, In pasticula
those relating to academic performance | finances | child welfare | sdmissions4ecurity.
The Trustees have implermented a rumber of systems to assess risks that the School Faces
and have developed polickes and procedures te mitigate those ks, The Schoaol has an
effectine system al inlernsl finscial controls and this b explained in mere detail in the
Govermance Salement

A rish regater i maintsined 3t the School level which is reviewed by the Finance and Audit
Comimittes regulsly, The Rigk egister raghlights the key ks, the Ukelibaod of those risks
accurring, their potential impact an the Schosl and the actions being taken to reduce and
mitigate thase risdkes. Risks ane priorilised using a consistent scanng system.

Mg thie nagure of the finenclal instrements dealt with by the company is relatively smple
{banik balanoes, debtors and “trade” crediters), Trustees consider the associated risk in this
Bl L0 B minimeL

The risk resutmg from the company’s share of the LGRS deficit is managed by following the
advice af the scheme's actuasies, specifically as regards the bevel of contribitions payable,
enturing that annual budgets are deawn up to reflect the actuary's advice,

Fundraising

The Schoal arganises fuamndraising events and campaigns and coardinates the actadties of the supporters bathin the
School and in the wider commanity. The Review of the Year's Activitics on pages 2 to B sets out the successes af owr

fundraising this year.

Al fundrasng is undertaken by the School in a manner that seeks to ensune that & is nol unreasocnably intruiie or
persilent. The Schoal complies with the Fundralsing Requlator's Code of Fundraising Practice and UK Lo There hase

heenma complaints abourl fundraidng acthity this year



Thee BRIT Schoal Uimifed: Bushees” Bepord For The Year Ended 31 August 2024

Plans for the Future

= Thee Schoal is creating ibs nesl S-pear strategy (o 20200730 in the first lalf of 2024/25. This work will inchele creating
a Currkoulum Wiskon, as well as m‘-dﬂ"ng the widier factors needed Lo endure the Schaod i an cacellent institution
with a Ainancially sustairable fure.

= The School will continue strrarg] te improve the levels of performance of its pupils at all levels and will continue
its effarts to ensure that its pupils are ready far the next stage of their education. The Schaod kmows its strengths
and weaknesses based on continual sell-assessment, The mast recent Ofsted ungraded inspocticn was In june
H0E3, with the autcome that it continues to be a good school hawoyver there s enough evidence of improved
performance Lo suggedt that the Schopl could be judged cutstanding i they were bo carry oul s graded [seclion 5]
ingpection nowe The Schools next inspection will be a graded inspection. External mederation and Nirdings from the
Ofsted inspection have been used to farmalate futue developments, we will put 2 plan in plece for all fearmers by
imgirowing K5% cutcomes in sclence, K5% HAPS and te clege the gap bebween Pupil Premivm and Non Pupil Premivn
in all subects theawegh intenention strategies which are tharough, tinss related and assessed far impact,

* The Schpal iImprosement Plan iz focussed an key, strategic developmental aneas. Curricufum aes lesdors a4geiq

their outcomes and put In place apprapriate measures far further improvement. These areas far deselapmant will
b chafienged and supperted so improvern ents are made, Staff who reguire support bo improve their practice will be

supported appropristely thraugh Cantirued Professions] Development and INSET Training days,

* Equality diversity and Inchasion (EDI: we will continue be build on ow ED| strateqy and our inclusioe practice to
suppart all young people irrespective of gender, sthnicily, sotisl bedkground and disabdityg,

* Croydon i owr home and we will continue to buld om the Brks we have with the borough bo suppoet our funding,
community engagement programmes and collaborations, marketing and accommodationfvemues.

* e will rernain sensithae to omiplovers and comgaantes ahout the skdlls required in their Tuture ssarkfarce and refiect
this in our curriculum,

= i waill reses o A0 plus year history by dacumenting the impact and suteomes of our giadustes and pesition
cursehees as sector inaders in arts education,

Funds held as custadian trustee

The Schoel does not hold Tunds as custodian truitee an behalf of others.

Audilor

Ir s T s the Trisateas are swane:
* There i< no relevant sudit information of which the chantable company's auditar is unawane; and

= The Truitees have Laken all steps that they ought to have taken fo make themsebees aware of any relesant
suidkk informaticen and fo eskablich that the sud®ar is aware of that Information

This Trustees’ repod, incorporafing o repad, wos opproved by order of the Board of Teushees,
asthe company directors, on 4 |12 [ JOQL|  and signed on the Board's behalf by:

J Berger CHE
Chair of Trusteaes

i
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Scope of responsibility

Az Trustees we acknowledge wa have overall respansibility for ensuring that The BRIT School has an effective and
appropriste dyatem of control, financisl 3nd athensises, However, such a system is designed ta manage rather than
eliminate the risk of failere to achiowe business objectives and can provide only reasonable and not absolute assuramoe
againsl material misstaternent or lod.

As Tristees, wo have reviewed and taken acoount of the guidance in DIES Gowernanos Handboak, the Acadery Trust
Hardbaok, and competency framewark lor governance,

The Board of Trustees has dolegated the day-to-day responsibiity ta the Principal as Accounting Officer, Tor
enguring fmancial controls confiarm with the requirements of both proprety and good financlal managemant and

in accondance with the requirements and responsibilities assgned to it inthe funding agreement between The BRIT
Lehaol and the Secretary of State for Education. The Accounting Officer s also responsible for reporting to the Board
af Trustess ary matesal weaknesses or breakdoswns in intermal condrel

Governance

The information on governance included here supplements that described in the Trestees' Report and in the
Statornent af Tnestons” Responsiilities, The Board of Trustesas has farmally met & times during the yesr, In sddition,
thire have been regular mestings between the Chalr of the Board and the Principal bo descuss warious govermance
matters and the Chalr has updated the Trustees accordingly, Attendance during the year at meetings of the Board of
Trustees was a3 follows:

Trustees Meeiings Ol of
Atiended Fossible
Josh Berger CBE (Chair 4 4
Kate Amibrasi {Vice Chair) iy i
Paul Burger OBE E] i
Maggie Crowe (BE 2 [
Angela Ferreira 3 4
AlLioyd-Webber ! 4
PMartin Locket ] ]
Lakshmiy Rajah 3 i
Dej Mahoney - i L]
Cush jumbo 08¢ 2 2
Jasmine Wikson [ )
Ty fose 8 k
Jamies Hilller [ [
o el il — 3 =
Andrew Smith 3 b
Rebecca Allen 3 b
lan Faragher 1 3
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Conflict of interests

The BRIT Schood mantaing an wp-to-date conflict of interest register which is updated every Septemibser and published
oy our wehsite. Trudtees and SLT are required Lo declane ary interests before amy trustes meetings, should any
conflicts of interest occw, The School 5 checking Companles House to ensure all interests have been declared by
Trustees and SLT,

We check aur supplier list on a regular basks to see if there are any companies/suppiers related to our Trustees and
SLT. If any condlict af interest is anticipated, the relevant purchasing dedsions shauld not invohee or be influenced by
relabed Trustees or SLT.

Governance Review

Thee Board last casmed gut a formad Shdlts Audst in 2022-23, as part of o wider Gonernance Review and Boged Evaluation.
Since then there has been an angaing skills awdit, 25 Trustees step down and before recruitment, However we plan to
carry out an evaluation of the board later in 2024-25,

The Finance and Awdit Committee is 2 committes to which the main Board of Trustees has delegated responsibility.
Its purpose is;

= Aeqular monitaring of actual income and expenditune

* Review and recommandation of the annual budget

* Resigw the reparts of the audors on the effectiveness of the financlal precedures and controls

* Fulfil the rode of an Audit and Risk Committes

The BT School carries out the function of an Asdit & Rk Committees within the Finance & Audil Commttes, sinte
wa are dqnificantly below the financial theeshald (ES0m) where the Department for Education requires a separate
At Committee.

Attendance during the year at meetings of the Finance and Audit Committoo was as follaws:

Trustees Meelings Out of
Martin Locket {Chair) 4 4
Paul Burger i L
Magadalin Clancy 3 L
 Andrew Smith & &
James Hillier {left 6/24) 3 5
Jon Favaghier Golied Bk, 3 -
Review of Value for Money

As Accounting Orfficer, the Principel has responsibility for ensuring that the School delbwers goad value in the uge

af public resaurces, The Acceunting Offecer understands that valies for money refers to the educationad and wider
socbetal outoomes achieved in returm Tor the taxpayer resources recersed.

The Accounting Officer congsiders how the School's ute of B4 retources has provided good valuse for maney during
each academic year, and reports to the Board of Trustees where value for money can be impraved, including the we
of benchmarking data where available, The Accaunting Offecer for the Schaal has delivered improved valiss for maney
curing the year by:

* Commitsioning an axternal repoet on staffing copenditione across the School in Autumn 2023, which resulted in the
Suppart Stafl Resiew in Summer 202&, and the appointment of Chiefl Operating Officer ba deive impraved Tinandal
sustamnability.
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The purpose of the system of internal control

The system of indernal controlts designed ba manage risk to a feasonsble level rather than to eliminete o8 risk of
faflure to achisve policies, sims and objectves. It can therelare antly pravide reatonable and ot absalute assurance of
effectiveness, The system of internal controd is based on an on-gaing process designed to identily and prioritise the
risks to the achlevement of the Sohoal's policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the lkelihoad of thoe risks being
realised and thi impact should they ba realisrd, and ta manage them afficiently, effectively and economicafly. The
gystem of internal contred has been dn place In The BRIT Schoed for the pericd O] September 20023 to 31 August 2024
and up to the date of approval of the annuad repoet and fimancial statements.

Capacity to handle risk

The Bond of Trustees has reviewsed the ey risks bo which the Scheal bs expesed together with the opaerating, financial
and comgliance controls that hawe been implemented to mitkgate those rlsks, The Beard af Trestees i of the view that
there is a farmal an-gaing proeess for identifying, evalustog ard menagng the School's significant dsks that has been
in place for the period 01 Seplember 2023 te 31 Aogust 2026 and up 1o the date of approval of the annual report and
fmancial statementt. This process is regularly revsewed by the Board of Trustees.

The risk and confral ramewaork

The Schaal's system of Intermnal cantrod [s based on a framework of reqular management informatian arsd
sdmanistrather procedures inchading the segregation of duties and 2 system of delegation and acoountabaity.

in particular it includes:

= comprehensive hudgeting and maonitoring systems with an armual budget and
periadic financlal reports which are reviewed and agreed by the Board of Trustees;

= pogular reviews by the Finanoe and Audit Commitiee of reperts which indicate
financisl performance against the forecasts and of major purchase plans,

capital works snd evpenditure pragrammes;
= welting targets Lo messure fnandal and other pesfonmenee:
* clearly defined puschasing (assel purchase of capilal imeestment) guklelines:
* delegatian af autharity and segregation of duties;
* ldentificatian and management of riske.

The Board af Trustees kas corsidened the need for a speciic intormal sudit function and has decided to appaoint
Burracolt a mternal auditor o perform additional checks.

The internal awditor's role includes giving advice on fnancial matters and perfoeming a range af ehecks on the Schoal's
financial systems. In particular the chocks carried gut inthe curment period inchuded:

* Testing of the month end manapement accounts process
* Intesnal fimandal comtrols

The auditor reports to the Board of Trustess, through the Finance and Audit commitfes, an the operation af the
systems of comtral and on the dischaege of the Board of Trustees” finandal responsibilities. The Schoal corfirms the
imernal auditar has delivered thelr scheduls of work as planned,



The BRIT §chaal Umited: Trusfees’ Repor For The Yeor Ended 31 Augusl 2024 i3

Review of elfectiveness

As fecaunting Officer the Principal has responsibélity for restiesdng the effectivensss of the system af inlernal contral.
Dusirig the year in question the neview has been informed by

* the work of Ehe internad awsditor;
* the work of the external auditor;
* the fmancial management and governanee self-assessment process

= bha wvork of the executive mandgens within the Scluool wiso have responsbility for the development and
maintenance of the interned contral framework.

Thee Accounting Officer has been advised of the implications of the result of thelr resdew of tho wystem of intermnal
contral by the Chief Operating Offcar snd a plan ta sddress weaknesses and ensune cortinuoss improvement of the

system i in place,
Conclusion

Based on the advice of the Fnance & Audit Commiitee and the Accounting Officer, the Board of Trustees is of the
aiinion thal thie scadimy tust has an adequate and effoctive framesork for governance, dsk manasgement and control

Approved by order of fhe members of the Board of Trustees on h[lijiﬂih and signed on Its behalf by:
/ // o<
1 Barger CBE orden

Chair of Trustees Accounting Officer



THE BRIT SCHOOL LIMITED

STATEMENT OF REGULARITY, PROPRIETY AND COMPLIANCE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

Az accoumiing officer of The BRIT School Limited, | have considernsd my responsibilty o nolify the School board of
rusteas ard lhe Edwcation and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) of material imegularity, impropriely and non-
compliance with lerms and condiions of all Tunding, including for esiates safely and managemend, under tha
funding agreemant in place bebwvean the School and the Secretary of Stale for Education, As part of my
congideration | have had due regard lo the requirements of the Academy Trest Handbook 2023, including
rissponsibilites for estates safely and managamsant.

1 confinm thal | and the School's board of tnestess are able to identify sy materal irmegular or Improper use of funds
by the Schoal, or material non-compliance with the terms and conditions of funding under the School's funding
agraament and the Academy Trust Handbook 3003,

I eonfirm thal no inslances of material imeguianity, mpropriaty or funding non-compliance have baen discovered o
date, If any instances are identifiad afler the date of this stalerment, these will be nolified 1o the board of tresbees and
ESFA.

4/12/2024

-23-



THE BRIT SCHOOL LIMITED

STATEMENT OF TRUSTEES' RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

The trustees (who are also the direciors of The BRIT School Limiled for the purposes of company law) are
rasponsible for praparing the tresiees” report and the Finencial Statemeonts in accordance with the Academies
Accounts Direchon 2003 o 2024 published by the Education and Skills Funding Agency, Linited

Accountimg Standards  (Unlled Kingdom Generslly Accepled Accounting Prachica) and applicable law and

resgslalions,

Comgpany law requires the rustees to prepare Financial Statements Tor each financial year, Undor company law, the
trusteas must not approve the Financial Stalamenis unless thay are satisfied thel they ghe a true and fair view of
ithe glate ol affairs of the charitable company and af il incoming resources and applicalion of resources, including
s income and axpanditure, for that pariod.

In praparing thesae Financial Siatemants, the ustees ane requined to:

« Salecd suitable accounting policies and than appdy tham consistently;

» obsere the methods and principles in the Charilies SORP 2019 and the Acadermios Acoounts Direction 2023 o
2024;

« make judgermnents and accounting eatimates that are reasonable and prodent;

« slate whethor appicable UK Accounting Standards hawve been followad, subject o any madaerdal depariuras
disclosed and explaEned In the Financial Stalements; and

« praparm the Financial Statements on the going concern hasis unless it is inappropriate to presumea that tha
charitable company will confinue in business,

Thea frustees are responslble for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficlent to show and explain he
charitable company's ransactions and disclosa with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial posilion af the
charitable company and enable them to ensune that tha Financlal Statements cornply with the Companles Act 2006,
Thay are also responsible for safequarding the assets of the charilable company and henca for taking reasonabla
ateps for the preventlon and detection of frawd and otiher Imeguiarities,

The trustees are responsible for ensuring that in B8 conduct and operatien the charitable company apples financial
and other contrals, which conform wilh the réquirerments both of prophcly and of good financial management. Thay
are also responsible for ensiring that grants recelad from ESFAMME have been applied for the purposes intendead,

The trustess are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the carporate and financial idormation included on

tha charilable comgany's wabsite. Laegislalion in the United Kingdom goveming the preparation and dissemination of
Financial Staternants may differ from legialation in olher jJursdictions,

Appraved by order of the membears of the board of trustess on It’ll[ﬁ'u& and signed on ils behall by

—f/’ﬁ

J Bargar CBE
Chair of Trustees

T



THE BRIT SCHOOL LIMITED

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF THE BRIT SCHOOL
LIMITED

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

Oipdnlon

We hawe audiled the Financial Statements of The BRIT School Limited for the year andad 31 August 2024 which
comprise the stalement of fingncial aclivilles, the balance sheel, the slatement af cash Nows and noles o the
Financlal Statements, Including signifizant accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that has baan
applind in their preparation is appicable law and Usiled Kingdom Accounting Slandards, including Financial
Reporting Standard 102 The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of keland” (Uiniled
Hingdom Generally Accepbed Accounling Practicos), the Chadies S0ORP 2019 and the Academiss Accounts
Direction 2023 fo 2024 issuad by the Education and Skills Funding Agency.

In car apinion the Finencial Slatemants:

- ghva a frue and fair view of the stala of the charitable company’s affairs as at 31 August 2024 and of its
incoming resources and applicalion of resources, incuding s income and axpendilure, for the year then
endad,

- hava bean properly prepanad In sccordance with United Kingdom Generally Accapted Accounting Practics;

- hava bean prepared in accordance with the requiremeants of the Companias Act 2006; and

- have bean prapared in sccordance with the Charilies S0RP 2013 and the Academies Accounts Déreclion
2023 to 20324,

Basis for opinion

We conducled our audil in accordance wilh IMemational Standards on Auditing (UK) (18As (UK)) and applicable
law. Our responsibilities wundar thoese slandards are further describad in the "Auditor's responsibiliGes for the audit of
the Financial Stalements’ seclion of our report, We are independent of the Schoal in accardanca with the ethical
requirerents that are relevant bo our audif of the Financial Statemenis in the UK, including tha FRC's Elhical
Standard, and we have fulfiied aur other ethical responsibilities in accondance wilh these requirements. We belleve
that tha awdil evidenca wa hava obiained is sufficient and appropriate o provide a basis for our opinion,

Conclusions relating to gelng concemn
in auditing the financial siaternents, we have concluded that the inestees' wsa of the going concern basis of
ascounting in the praparation of the inancial stalarments is appropriate.

Basad on he work we have performed, we have nol idenlified any matesial uncertainlies relating 1o evenis or
conditions that, Individually or callectively, meay casi significant dould on tha School's abiity o continue as a going
concem for a period of at least twelve months from when Bwe Fnancial statements ane authorised for issue,

Our rasponsibilifies and the responsibilifies of the tstess with respec o going concem are described o the
refevant seclions of this report.

Other Infarmation

The ather information comprises the information incleded in the anncal report ather than the Financial Statements
and our audilor's report theneon, The trustees are responsible for the ather information conbatned within the annua
raporl, Owr opindon on the Financial Siatemants does not cover the other infosmation and, axcapt 1o tha adant
ofbersise explicilly sialed in our repod, we do Aol express any form of assursnce conclusion therean, Our
responsibility is o read the other informalion and, In doing 50, considar whether the athar information is materially
inconsistent with the Financial Stalements or our knowledge obtained in the course of the awdit, or olhersise
appears o ba matedally misstatad. I we identify such malarial inconsisténcias o apparend maberial misstalemeants,
we are reduitned 1o detesmine whether this gives rse to a materal misstaterment v the Financlal Statements
themsalves. N, basad on the work we have performaed, wa conclede thal there 5 a malerial misstatement of this
cther information, we ane required to repor that fact,

Whe hawve nothing o report in this regard,

=25~



THE BRIT SCHOOL LIMITED

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF THE BRIT SCHOOL
LIMITED {CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

Dpinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies &ct 2008

In our apinion, based on the wark undertaken in the course of the aedil:

- the information given in the trustees’ repor including the incorporated strategic repor Tor e financial yoar for
which the Financial Statements are prepared is consistant with the Financial Statements; and

= e brustess’ repor incheding the incorporaled sirategic raport has been prepared in acoordance wilh
applicable legal raquiraments.

Matters on which we ara reguired to report by exception

In ihe lighl of the knowledge and understanding of the School and Its emdronment oblained in the course of the
audit, wa have nol identified malesal misstalerments in the tustess' report, including the Inconporatad strategic
ripaort,

We have nothing to report in raspect of the following matiers in relation fo which the Companies Aol 2006 roquires

us to mepart o yoau if, in aur epinion:

= adequale accounting records have nol been kepl, or retumns adequate for our audit have not been racelved
fram branches nol visited by us; or

- the: Financial Stelamenls are nol in agreement with the aceounling records and rebums: or

- cerfain discloswes of rustaes” remuneration speciiad by law ane not made; or

- wa have not received all the information and axplanations we maquire fer our audil,

Rasponsibilities of trustees

As axplaimed maore fully In the statement of trustees’ responsibllites, the trusieas ane responsible for e praparalion
of the Financial Statements and for baing satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such intamal control as
thi frusiees determing is necessary to enable the preparation of Financiad Statemeants thal are free fom matarial
misstaternent, whether due lo fraud or error, In preparing the Financial Staterments, the frusiaes are responsible for
assessing tha School's ability to continue a5 a going concam, disclosing, as applicable, matiars related 1o gaing
concem and using the going concern basis of accounting unlass the frustess efther intend to liquidate the charitable
company, or hava no realistic allamative but to do so,

Auditar's responsibilities for the audit of the Financial Statements

Ouir otjectivas are b obtain reasonable assuranca aboul whather the Financlal Staternents as a whobs ara free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or ermor, and Lo issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assuranca is a high laval of assurance bul ks not a quarantes that an aedit conducted in accordanc
with 1SAs [UK) will always detec] a mateskal misstatement whan il exists. Missiatements can arise from fraud or
arraf and are considerad maderial i, individually or in the aggregata, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of usars Laken on the basis of these Financial Statements.

The extent to which cur procedures are capable of detecting iregulaities, incheding fraed, is detailed balow.

- Enquiry of managament and those charged with govemance around actual and potential liigation and claims,

= Enquiry of managamand 1o idenlify any instances of non-complisnca with laws and regulationsa,

- Reviewing minutes of maetings of those charged with govemanca,

= Rapviewing Inkernal assurance repors,

- Raviewing financial staterment disclosures and testing to suppording docsmanialion 0 assess compliance with
applicable lxws and regulations.

- Auditing tha risk of meansgemant ovemide of controds, incleding through besting joumal enlries and ofher
adjustments for appropriateness, and evalusling the business rationale of significant transactions oufsida the
narmal course of business.




THE BRIT SCHOOL LIMITED

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF THE BRIT SCHOOL
LIMITED (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

A further descriplion of our responsibiliies iz avaflable on the Financial Reporting Council's website al: httpa
wrw fro.ong ukfauditorsresponsibilifies. This descripion faems part of our auditor's report.

Use of our repart

This report is made solely Lo the charitable company™s Members, &5 a body, in accondance with Chapter 3 of Part 16
of this Companias Al 2006, Our audit work has bean underiaken so that wa might stabe b the charitable company's
Membars those matters we are required 1o siate to them in an auditor's repor and far no other purpose. To the
fullest exlant parmilted by lew, we do nol sccept or assuma responsibility 0 anyone other tan the charitable
company and the charitable company’s Mambers as a baody, for our audit wark, for this repod, or for tha opinions wa
hianve farmed,

Laukee Hallsworth FCA [Sandor Statuteny Auditor)
for and on behall of Baxter & Co 10 December 2024

Charterad Accountants

Statutory Auditor 1 Vicarage Lana
Stralford
Londan
E15 4HF
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THE BRIT SCHOOL LIMITED

INDEPENDENT REPORTING ACCOUNTANT'S ASSURANCE REPORT ON
REGULARITY TO THE BRIT SCHOOL LIMITED AND THE EDUCATION AND SKILLS
FUNDING AGENCY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

In accordance with the terms of our engagemeant leller dated 14 Movember 2024 and further 1o the requirements of
the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) as included in the Academées Accounts Direction 2023 to 2024,
we have cared ol an engagemant o obtain Emited assurance aboul whather the expenditure distursad and
meoma recaived by The BRIT School Limited during the period 1 Seplember 2023 lo 31 August 2024 have been
applied to the purposes identified by Parllament and the financial transactions conform to the autharilies which
aervgrn tham.

This report is made solely to The BRIT School Limited and ESFA In accordance with the terms of our engagement
letter. Our work has been wundertakan so that wa might state to the The BRIT School Limited and ESFA (hose
matlers we are required o state in a repart and for no athar purpose. To the fullest extent parmitted by law, we do
nad accepl or assume responsibdily 1o anyone ofher than The BRIT School Limitad and ESFA, for our work, for this
repart, ar for the conclesion we have farmed,

Respective respensibilitles of The BRIT School Limited's accounting officer and the reparting accountant
Ther éccounting officer ks responsible, under the requirements of The BRIT School Limited's funding agreement with
the Secratary of State for Education dated 1 Nowember 2008 and the Academy Trust Handbook, extant from 1
septormber 2023, for ensuring that expenditure disbursed and incoma recaived i appliod for the purpeses intendad
by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which govarn them.

Qur responsibilities for this engagement are established in the United Kingdom by our profession’s ethical guidancs,
and are 1o oblain Bmited assurance and report in accordance with cur angagement letter and the requirements of
the Acadamies Accounts Direction 2023 to 2024. We report 1o you whether anylhing has come to our atlention in
curying oul our work which suggests thal in o8l material respacts, expenditure disbursed and income received
during the period 1 Seplember 2023 1o 31 August 2024 have nol been applied to purposes intended by Parliament
or that the financial ransactions do nol conform io the authorites which govern them,

Approach
We conducted our engagement in accordance with the Framework and Guide for Extarmal Auditors and Rapaorting
Accouniant of Academy Trusls issued by ESFA. We performed a limited assurance engagement as defined in our

engagamenl |eller,

The objective of a imited assurance engagement is 1o perform such procedures as o obdain infarmation and
axplanations in arder to provide us with sufficient appropriate evidence 1o axpress a negative conclusion on

resguilarily.

A limiled assurance engagement i more limited In scope than a ropsonahle assuranes angagamaent and
consequently does not enable us to oblain assurance thal we would become awarne of all significant matiers that
might be identified in a reasonable assurance engagement, Accordingly, we do not axpress a positive opinion.

Our engagement includes examination, on a test basts, of evidence relevant to the regularity and propricty of the
School's income and axpanditure,

T work: underiaken to draw o aur conciusion includes:

= Reviow of paymants 1o staff;

« Review of payments 1o suppliers and other third parties;

« Rivdew af grant and other income streams;

+ Review of some kay financial confrol procaduras;

« Discussions with finance staff;

« Consideration of the record maintained by the Accounting Officer of the oversighl they have exercised;

« Consideration of tha programme of internal serufiny implemanted by the Acadery Trust in order 1o comply
with its abligetions under 3.1 of tha Academy Trust Handbook 2023, issued by the ESFA,




THE BRIT SCHOOL LIMITED

INDEPENDENT REPORTING ACCOUNTANT'S ASSURANCE REFPORT ON
REGULARITY TO THE BRIT SCHOOL LIMITED AND THE EDUCATION AND SKILLS
FUNDING AGENCY (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

Conclusion
In the courss of our wark, no mallers have come b our altention which suggests that in all matesial respects the

axpandiure disbursad and Income recalved during the period 1 Seplamber 2023 to 31 Awgust 2024 has nod been
applied 1o parpesaes inbended by Paiament and the Gnancial transactions do not conform o the suthoritias which

goveen tham.,

We did nota that the number of membars during the year fell 10 1 which is in bresch of the ESFA minimum
requirement of 3 members,

+ Twa of the membess reslgned on 6 December 2023 and ware not replaced undil 25 Saptember 2024,

Bowm ZL_:’

Reporting Accountani
Baxter & Co

1 Vicarape Lana
Slratford

London

E15 4HF

Daed; .. 10.December 2024
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THE BRIT SCHOOL LIMITED

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES
INCLUDING INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

Income and endewments from:
Donalicns and capital granis
Charitat¥e aclivilies;

= Funding for educalional operations
Oipheer braling aclivities

lmvaesirmens

Total

Expenditure an:
Raising funds
Charitabie activilies:

= Educatlonal aperations

Tatal

Met income/{expenditure)
Transtes bebwaan funds
Hher recognised gains/ilossas)

Acthusadial gains on defined banafi
pension schamas

Adjustment for residclicn on pension
assels
Mat movement in funds

Raconciliation of funds
Tokal funds brought forwand

Tota funds carmisd forward

Hotes

14

21

il

Unrastricted

Restricted funds:
funds General Fixed asset
£'000 £°000 £°'000
1,753 226 THZ

278 10,601 -
ai6 110 -
a -
2878 10,937 Taz2

- 2234
2,773 10,494 TEB
2,773 10,718 _?t'.:ﬁ
105 218 (i3
{128) [156) 284

- 868

" (368}
(23 (37 ;a
1,152 ar 16,262
1,128 15,540

Tatal Total
2024 2023
£'000 £'000
2,761 2,518
10,879 10,560
926 742
3 2
14,587 13,822
224 237
14,055 14,760
14,279 14,997
318 {1,175)
a6a 251
(368) -
218 (624)
16,451 17,075
16,569 16,451




THE BRIT SCHOOL LIMITED

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES (CONTINUED)
INCLUDING INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

Comparative year information
Year ended 31 August 2023

Nates
Incoma and endowments from;
Donations and capital grants |
Charitabhe activilies:
= Fumding for educational operations 4
Odher rading sctivities 5
Investmaents L
Tatal
Expenditure on;
Raising funds 7
Chanlable acthalies:
= Educational oparalions &
Total T
Nt incomal(expanditiira)
Transfers batwesn funds 14

Cther recognisad gains/{losses)
Actuarial gains on defined banafit pansion schemes 21

Hat movemant in funds

Reconciliation of funds
Talal funds beought forward

Tolal funds camied forwand

Unrestricted

funds
£'000

1,338

Resiricted funds: Total
Ganeral Fixed asset 2023
£'000 £000 £'000
539 a4l 2518
10,208 - 10,560
105 - 42
- 2
10,952 G40 13,822
237 237
11,862 BE2 14,780
12,1949 BE2 14,997
{1.247) {242} {1,175)
(263) 355 -
551 - 5541
{G8a) 113 [Ei2d)
1,026 15,144 17,075
KT 15,262 16,451

e B w



THE BRIT SCHOOL LIMITED

BALANCE SHEET

AS AT 31T AUGUST 2024
2024 2023

Hotas 504040 £'000 £'aoa £1000
Fixad assets
Intangible aesats 12 A 10
Tangible assals 13 2263 2483

22642 24493
Currant assats
Cebiors 15 1,532 1,174
Cash at bank and in hand 1,186 1,243
2718 2417

Current liabilities
Craditors: amounts falling due within one year 16 1. 306) (1,031)
Mat current assets 1412 1,280
Total assets less currant labilities 24,054 23,878
Creditors: amounts falling dus alter mora
than oné year 17 {7.385) (7 485)
Met assels excluding pension asset 16,668 16,414
Defined benell pension scheme asael bt | - 3
Total net assets 16,669 16,451
Funds of the School:
Restricted funds 19
= Fiaed agset funds 156,540 15,262
- Pengion reserna - ar
Total restricted funds 15,540 15,209
Unrestricted income funds 19 1,129 1,162
Total funds 16,660 16,451

The Financial Statements on pages 30 o 55 were approwed by the trustees and shordsed for |ssue
on ..i_rill.’.lﬁj:q.. and ara signed on their behall by

—FBErger GBE
Chair of Trustees

Company registration number 02369239 (England and \Wales)




THE BRIT SCHOOL LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

Notes

Cash flows from oparating activities
Mal cash provided by oparating activities 22

Cash flows from investing activities

Dividendds, interest and nends from invesimenls
Capital grants from DHE Groug

Purchase of tangitle fxed asseds

Mat cash (used in)iprovided by investing activities
Cash flows from finanging activities

Capital elemant of hire purchase and finance ases
Financa cosls

Nat cash usad in financing activities

Mat decreasa in cash and cash equivalents in the
raparting pariod

Cash and cazh eguivalants 8t baginning of the yaar

Cash and cash agulvalents at end of the yaar

2024
£'000 £'000
425
3
82
{857)
(124}
(80)
(278)
(358)
(57)
1,243
1,186

23
E'000 £000
251
2
Bl
(E06)
a6
{B1)
{278)
(359)
72}
1,315

1.243




THE BRIT SCHOOL LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

1.4

1.2

1.3

Accounting policles

A summary of tha principal accounting policies adoptad {which have bean applied consistently, except whare
noted), judgemants and kay sourcas of estimation uncertainly, i set out below.

Basls of preparation

The Financial Statements of the School, which is & public benafit enlity under FRS 102, have been prepared
under he hislorical cost convention in accordancs wilh the Financial Reporting Standard Applicable in B UK
and Republic of reland (FRS 102), the Accounting and Reporting by Charilies: Statement of Recommeandad
Practice applicable lo charities preparing their Finandal Statements In eccordance with the Financal
Raporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102) (Charities SORP (FRS 102)), the
Academies Accounts Direction 2023 1o 2024 issued by ESFA, the Charities Act 2011 and the Companias Act
2004,

Golng concern

The trustees assess whether the use of going concem ks approgeiate, e whelher there are any material
unceainties related fo0 events or condithons thal may cast significant doubt on the abliity of the charitabie
company o conbiniie as a going concem, The trustees make this assessment in respect of a period of a1 least
ane yiar from the date of autharzation for issue of the Financial Statements and have concluded thal the
School has adequate resources o continge in operational existence for the foresesable fulure and thera ara
e material uncortainties abosd the School's abiity fo confinue as a going concem. Thus they confinue 1o
adapl the going concam basls of accaunting in praparing the Financlal Statemeants,

Income
All incoming resources are recognised when the School has entitlement to the funds, the receipt is probable
and the amaunt can be measured raliably.

Granls

Granls ane includad in the Statemant of Financial Acthities on a recaivable basis. The balance of incoms
recaived for spacilic purposes but nol expended during the perod is shown In the relevant funds on the
balance sheal, Whane incoms is received in advance of mealing any performance-related conditions there is
nat unconditional entiflement o the ncome and Hs recognition is deferred and included in creditors as
deferred incame until the performance-related conditions are mal, Where entilernent occurs before income is
racaivad, the incomse |5 aserued,

General Annual Grant s recognised in full in the Siatement of Financial Activities In the period far which it is
receivable, and any abalement in respact of the period s deducted from incoma and recognisad as a lability,

Capital grants are recognised in full when thare ts an unconditional enlitlement 1o the grant, Unspent amounts
of capital grants are reflecled in the Balince Sheet in the resticted fixed assel fund, Capital grants are
recognised when thare is entilemant and are not deferred over the life of tha asset on which they ane
axpandad.

Danationg
Donalions are mcognised on a receivable basls (where Bere are no performance-relatad conditions) wherg
the receipt (s probablie and the amount can be relisbly measured,

Other income
Othar income, including the hire of facilities, is recognised In the parlod It s recaivable and o the axiant the
Schoal has provided the goods or servicas.




THE BRIT SCHOOL LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

1.4

1.5

Accournting policies {Continued)

Donated fixed assets

Donated fixed assels are measured o fir value unless it g impractical to measure this reliably, in which case
the cost of the Mem to the donor ks wused. The gain is mecognised as income from donalions amd a
comasponding amown! s included in the appropriate fixed assel calegory and deprecialad over the useful
econamic life in accordenca with the School's accounting palicies,

Expanditure

Expenditure is recagnised onca there is a legal or construclive obligation Lo transfar economic benalit lo a
third party, il is probabde thal a transfer of economic banefits will be raquired in sattlamant, and the amount of
the obligation can ba measwned raliably.

Expenditure is classified by activity. The costs of cach aclivily are made up of the lotal of direct costs and
sharad costs, incuding support costs invebed in undenaking each activity, Direct cosls atiributabls bo a single
activity are allocated directly to that activity. Shared costs which confribube to more than one activity and
suppart costs which are not atirbutable 1o a single activity are apportionad batwean those activities on a basis
consistent with the use of mscurces. Cendral stall cosls ane allocated an the basis of ime spent, and
deprociation changes are allocated on the portlon of thae assat’s use.

All resourens expanded are inclushbes of Irecoverable VAT,

E i asing fund
This inchedes all expendibee incurred by the School to ralze funds for Bs charitable purposes and includes
cosis of all fundraising activities events and non-chantable trading,

Charitalble activitios
Theae are costs incurrad on the Schoal's educational aperalions, Inchiding suppaf cosls and eosts relating to
the governance af the School appertioned lo charitable activities.

Intangible fixed assets and amartization

Intangibbe assets costing £10,000 or more are capltalizad and recognized whan future aconomic banaofits are
probable and the cost or value of the assel can be measured reliably, Intangible assets ane inikadly recognised
ak cost and are subseguently measuned at cost net of amonisation and any provision for impairmment.

AmoriEation B proviged an intangible fived assels sl rates calcalated to write off tha cost of each assel on a
siraight-line basis over its expected useful Ba, as follows,

« Purchased computer software 16.5%

Tangible fixed assots and depreciation
Assels costing £10,000 or more par item are capifalised as tangible fixed assets and are carrled al cost, net of
dapraciation and amy provision for impalrment.

Whers langibde fixed assets have been acquired with the aid of spacific grants, it from e government o
from the private sector, they are included in the Balance Sheet at cost and depreciatad over their expected
usefl economic life, Where there are specific condiions attached 1o the fending that require the continued
wse of the assat, the related granls ane credited to a restricted fived aseel fund in the Statament of Financial
Activiies and carred forward in the Balanca Sheat. Wihere tangible food assets have besn acquired / funded
by ather income, the fed asset fund is also credited, Depreciation on the relevant assats is changed directly
fo the resiricted fixed asset fund in the Slatemant of Financial Activities.

.35



THE BRIT SCHOOL LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

1.7

148

190

Accounting policies (Cantinuad)

Depreciation is providad on all tangible fixed assels, al ates calculaled to wrile off the cost of each asset on &
straight-Ene basts over its expacied uselul life, as follows:

Leasehold Land and bulldings Land - 0.8%; Buildings - 2%-5%
Computar eguipmeant 33.33% - 50%
Fixtures, fitings & equipmend 20%

A reviaw far impairment of a fixed assel is cartied oul if evenls or changes in droumstances indicate that he
camying value af any fixed asset may not be recoverable. Shortfalls batween the carmying value of fixed assets
and thair recoverable amounts ane recognised as impairments. Impairment losses are recognised i the
Statemenl of Financial Activities.

Liabilitias

Liabiities are recognised when there is an obligation at the balance sheet date as a result of a past event, it is
probabde that a transfar of economic benefit will be required in satilement, and the amount of the sattiement
can be estimaled reliably, Liabilties are recognisad at the amount that the Schodl anbcipates it will pay to
seitle the debt or the amount it has recaived as advanced paymeants for tha goods of sarvices It must provids,

Laasad assets
Leases are classified as finance leages whanever the lerms of thi loase fransfer substantially all tha risks: and
renvards of ownership o the ksseos, All olher leases are classified as operating leases.

Aszels hald under financs leases ane recognised as assats at the lower of the assets fair value al the date of
incaption and the presant vaiua of the minimum laase payments. The related labdity is includad in the balance
sheat az a finance lease obligation. Lease paymenis are tresled 8z consisting of capital and interast
elements. The interest is charged to the statement of financial activities 5o as to produce & constant pariodic
rata of intarest an the remaining balance of the Eability.

Renlals under aparating beases are charged on a straighl-line basis over tha lease tarm,

Financial instruments
The School only holds basic inancial instruments as defined In FRS 102. The financlal assels and nancial
linbilites. of the Schood and thelr meassurameant basis are as follows,

Finaneial assets
Tridee and other dobdors ara basic fimancial Instruments and are debd instremaents measured at amortised cost,
Prepaymants are not financial instrumants,

C:ash at bank s classified as a basic fnancial instrument and is measurad at faca value.

Einancial liabiiies
Trade credifors, accneals and olher creditors are linandial insirumenis, and are measured at amartized cosl,
Taxation and sockl security are not includad in the finandial instruments disclosure definition.

Defarred income i not deemed to be a financial liability, as the cash sattlement has already taken place and
thaene is an obligation to defiver services rather than cash or another fnancial instrurment.

Taxatian

The School is considerad lo pass the bests sal out In Paragragh 1 Schedule § of the Finance Act 2010 and
therafore it meels the definilion of a charitable company for UK corporation tax purposes. Accordingly, the
School is potentially exampd from {axatlon in respect of income of capial gains recaived within categories
coverad by chapter 3 part 11 of the Corparation Tax Act 2010 or Saction 256 of the Taxalion of Chargeable
Gadns Act 1992, to the extent thal such incoma or geins are appled exclusivaly o charitable purposes.

-



THE BRIT SCHOOL LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

1.1

Accounting policies iContinuad)

Pansions banafits

Ralirement banafits ko employeas of the School are provided by the Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS') and
the Local Govemmant Pansion Scheme (LGPS'), These are delined benefit schemes and the assets and the
abdities are held separately fram thoae of the School,

The TPS is an unfunded scheme and conbibutions are calculated to spread the cost of pensions ovar
employees' working Bves wilh the Schoal in such a way that the pansion cost is a substantially level
percantage of current and future pensionabla payroll. The contrbutions are determined by the Government
Actuary based on quadrennial valualions using a prospective unit credit method. The TPS is an unfunded
muli-employer scheme with no underlying assets to assign between employers, Consequently, the TPS is
treated as a defined contribution scheme for accounting purposes and the contribulions ane recognised in the
paricd to which they relata,

The LGPS is o fundad muli-emplover schame and the assats are held separately from those of the School in
separate trustas administerad funds. Pension scheme assels are measured al fair value and liabilities are
raasured on an actuanial basks using the projacted unit credit method and discounted at a rala equivalant 1o
the current rate of return on a high-qualily carporate bond of equivatent term and currency o the liabiElies,
Thi scheanial valustions are obtained at least tiennially and ane updated &l each balance sheel date. Tha
amounts charged o nel income or expendilure are the curent service costs and the costs of scheme
introductions, benafil changes, setlements and curtailments. Thay are incleded as parl of staff costs as
Incurred. Met Interest on the net defined benefit liabililyfassel s also recognised In the siatemant of financial
aclivities and comprises the interest cost on the defined benedit obligation and interest incoma on the schema
azaels, calculated by multiplying the Fair value of the scheme assets at the beginning of the period by the rle
used 1o discount the benaf obligations. The diference batween the inbenest income on the schame assais
and tha sctual raterm on the schome assels B recognised 0 oother recognised gains and losses. Acluarial
gains and losses ang recognised immedistaly in other recognised gaings and losses,

Fund accounting
Unrestricied income funds represent those resources which may be used towards meating any of the
charitable objacts of the School af the discretion of the trustees,

Restricted fixed asset funds are resources which are to be applied to specific capital purposes impased by
Funders whine the assel acquired or crestad is hald for a specilic purpose,

Restricled general funds comprise sl other restricted funds receheed with restrictions imposed by the funder
donor and inclede grants Trom the Deparment for Education Group.

Critical accounting estimates and areas of judgemant

Accounting estimates and judgements are conlinually evaluated and are basad on historcal expesence and
other faclors, including expeciations of fulure evenls that ane believed 1o be reasonable under the
circumstances.

aritscal 2 hing ¢ 1 S LI
The School makos estimales asgump
assumptions will, by definition, seldom egual the related aclual results. The estimates and assumplions that
have a significant risk of causing & material adjestmant to the carrying amounts of assels and Rabililies within
tha next financial year are discussed bebny,




THE BRIT SCHOOL LIMITED

MNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

2 Critical accounting estimates and areas of judgement (Cantinued)

Tha prasent value of thi Local Govemmant Penalon Scheme defined benefit liability depends on a number of
faclors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a variaty of assumplions. The assumplions used in
dedarmining the nel cost or income for pensions include the discount rate, Any changes in these assumplions,
which are disclosed in note 21, will impact on the camying amount of the pension liabiity. Furthermore, a roll
forward approach which projects results from the latest full actuarial valuation performed &t 31 March 2022
has been used by the actuary in valuing the pensions liability at 31 August 2024, Any differences betweon the
figures derived from the roll forward approach and a full actuarial valuation would impact on the carying

amaurd of the pension liability.

Critical areas of judgamant

In preparing these Financial Stalarnents, the trustees have nol needed 1o exercize any subjective judgemeants
that would be critical o the School's Financial Stataments.

3 Donations and capital grants

Unrestricted Restricted Total Total

funds funds 2024 2021

£ 000 £°000 E'000 £0040

Capital grans - T82 a2 )
Cihar denations 1,753 s i 1,974 1,878
1.753 1,008 2,781 2518

= — E—— —




THE BRIT SCHOOL LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

Funding for tha School's educational aperations

DfE/ESFA grants

Ganaral annual grant (GAG)
Otiver MEMESFA grants:

- Pupdl pramium

- 16-18 funding

- (Mhars

Other governmant grants
Local authorily granis

COVID-19 additional funding
DIE/ESFA

Oithar DFEESFA GOVID-19 funding
Man-DIEFESFA

Oither COVID-19 funding

Other funding

Cataring income

Trips incoma

Oiher Incoming resources

Tatal funding

Unrestricted
fumds
£'000

ara

278

|-

278

Resirictad
funds

10,601

Taotal
2024

E£'000
2.5a7
i

&, 702
B27

10,180

266

10,874

[

Ll

140

25
17

P

A443

10,580

Following the reclassification in the Academiss Accounts Direclion 202372024 of some granis recaivad from
the Deparment for Edecation and ESFA, the School's 16-19 core education funding is no longer reported
under the GAG heading, bul as saparate lina under the Other DIE/ESFA grants heading. The prior year

numbers have been reclassifed,

Qther trading activities

Paripatefic essons
Other incamss

Unreatricted
fumids
E"000

Restrictad
funds

Tatal
2024
£'0a0




THE BRIT SCHOOL LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

Invastmant income

Shaort lerm daposits

Expandilura
Staff cosis
£'000
Expandidung on raising funds
= Dinect costs 211
Acadarmy's aducational operations
= Dirercl costs 7915
= Allocabed supgort cosis 2,359
10,485

——

Met incomel/{expenditure) for the year includes:

Oparating ase nentals

Bepreciation of tangible fixed assats
Armadtisation of intangible fixed assets

Feas payable fo awditor for:

= Audit

= Oitirr Services

Finance lease intarest

el intenest on defined benafit pension Eabisly

Il within expenditure are the following transections:

Gifts. made by the School - total

Unrestricted  Resiricled Taotal
funds funds 2024
EQa0 £ 000 £'000

Kb - |
Mon-pay expenditure Tatal
Premises Other 2024
£1000 £°000 E'000
= i3 224
a3z 815 9,462
1,067 1,137 4,693
1,729 2 D65 14,279
2024
E000
13
THE
2
a
B
27
{71}
Tatal
2024
E
364

Tatal
2023
£'000

Individual
2024
E

E—

Clarification - While the majority of disclosura in these acsounts ane roundad to £'000, the disclosure of gifls

mxde is nol. The valua of gifts for the year is £354 (and not £364k),

- 41 -



THE BRIT SCHOOL LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

funds
£°000

[ F 7

4,960

————

11,262

Charitable activities
Unrastricted Restricted
funds
£ 000
Direct costs
Educational operations 2340
Support costs
Educational aperalions 433
2,773

Analyzis of costs

Direct costs

Tepching and educational supporl staff costs
Deprecation and amanisation

Technology cosls

Educational supplies and services
Examination feas

Educalional consultancy

Qthwer dirgct costs

Support costs

Support staff costs

Defined benefl pension schema - staff costs (FRS102 adjustment)
Staff developman

Despreciation and amanision

Technology costs

Mainlananca of premises and aqulpment

Cheaning

Energy costs

Rent, rates and othar cocupancy costs

Insuranca

Sacurily and ranspart

Calaring

Finance cosls

Ciefined benaf pension scheme - finance costs (FRS102 adjustmant)
Legal casls

Other support costs

GoWarmance: costs

e .

Tatal
L]

9,462

4,593

14,055

2024
E000

F k]

1
a5d
am

13
207

B402

e

235

32
156

a3
229
330
245
4l

433
278
71}
12
M7
42

4,593

Tatal

£000

8,474

762

249

-t



THE BRIT SCHOOL LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

g Staff
Staff costs and employes benefits
Staff costs during B year were:
2024 2023
£'000 £'000
Wages and salaries 7,532 6,899
Social aacurlty costs 831 TE4
Fanslon costs 1,454 1,234
Definad benafit pension scheme - staff costs (FRS102 adjustment) a4 1,568
Slaff costs - emplyyees 9,865 10,485
Agency stafl costs 482 B35
Staff restruciuring cosis 126 124
Total stafl expenditune 10,485 11,124
Stafl restrucluring cosls comprise:
Redundancy payments a8 5
Sevarance payrmenis a0 L]
128 124
Saverance payments
The School pakd 3 severance payments in the year, disclosad in the following bands:
£0 - 25,000 1
£25,004 - £50,000 2

Special staff severance paymants

Special staff severance payments are amounts paid to employess oulside of statutory and contractual
requiremants. Incheded in staff restructuting cosls are special severance payments fotalling £90k (2023
E42k). Individually, the payments were: £17k, E28k and £45k.

Staff numbers
The average number of persons employed by the School during the year was as follows:
2024 2023
Humbar Humbar
Tiachwers B2 79
Afministration and supgpo B4 a5
Managemenl b A

175 172

p—

. .



THE BRIT SCHOOL LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

L Staff
The number of persons employed, expressed as a full ime equivalant, was as follows:
2024
Numboer
Teachers 73
Administiration and swuppor 71
Managament g
153
Higher paid staff
The number of emghyess whoss employes benafils (axcluding employer pension costs
national insuranca confributions) exceaded £60,000 was:
2024
MNurmber
£60,000 - ET0,000 15
£70,001 - E80.,000 1
£80.001 - £90,000 1
£590,001 - £100 0060 2
£100,001 - E110,000 =
£110,001 - £120,000 4
£180,001 - £190,000 1

Key managamant personnal

(Continued)
2023
Number

6B
Td

150

and employer

... b

The key management personnel of the Schood comprise the lrustess and the senior managameant team as
listed on page 1, The totel amount of key management personned banafits (including employar pansion
contributions and amploar national insurance contributions) recehed by key managemant personnel for their

services 1o the School was £1,327K (2023; £1,240k)

10 Trustees' remuneration and expenses

One or maone af the islees has been pald remunaration or has recaived othar benafits fram an employmeant
wilh tha School. The principal and other Stalf trustees only receive remuneration in respect of serdces thay
proside undertaking fhe roles of principal and staff membars under thair contracts of employment, and nod in

raspect of thair sarvicas as rusbees,

The value of rusiaes’ remuneration and olher benefils was as follows:

L Rajah (Stafl Trusboe)
» Femuneration: EG0,000 - £85,000 {2023: £55,000 - £&0,00)
« Employers pension contribulions: £15,000 - £20,000 [2023: £10,000 - £15,000)

& Smiith (Stafl Trustes - appointed 13 Seplember 2023)
» Remimeration: £60,000 - E85,000 (2023; nol appoinied)
« Employers pension contibations: £10,000 - £15,000 (2023 nat appointed)

During B year ended 31 August 2024, expenses totalling £65 (2023 E5T) wara reimbursad or paid directly to

1 Trustes (2023: 1 Trusiaa).




THE BRIT SCHOOL LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

1

12

13

Trustees' and afficers’ insurance

Tha School has apted inte the Departmant for Education’s Risk Protection Arrangement (RPA), an allemative
to insurance where UK government funds cover losses Bl arise. This schame protects tnestess and officens
from claims arising from negligent acts, emrmars or omissions occieming whils! an School Business, and providos
cover up o £90,000,000, It is not possible to quantify the trusiees and officers indemnity alament Trom the
owerall cost of the RPA scharme,

Intanglbla flued assets
Computer
software
£4000
Cosi
AL T Seplember 2023 and at 31 August 2024 14
Amartization
Al 1 Seplember 2023 i
Charge for 2
AL 3T Augusi 2024 'E
Carrying amount
Al 31 August 2024 &
Al 31 August 2023 10
Tangible fixed assots
Leasehold Computer  Fixtures, Total
Land and aguipment  flitings &
busiblings equipmant
£'000 £5004 £9000 £
Caost
Al 1 Seplember 2023 34,810 6,338 455 42 0
Addilions BER h4 15 937
Al 31 Augus] 24 35,678 &,380 a70 43,024
Depreciation
Al 1 Seplambar 2021 12,442 8,221 845 18,6048
Charge for tha year G40 134 12 Ta6
Ab 31 August 2024 13,082 6,355 857 20,394
Met book value
Al 31 August 2024 22,506 25 13 22,634
Al 31 Augusl 2023 22,368 105 10 22,483

—_————

The leases for land and buildings run unlil 2117, with the option on alther side to break the lease, with the
approval of the Secrelary of Slate for Education, on 28 Seplember 2038 and avery five years tharaafter. Rent
increases are avery five years in line with the Retail Price Index.

4 -
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14

15

Fired asseat investmants
Historical eost:
Al 31 Avgusi H024

Al 31 August 2023

||m||r¢

Tha School's wholly owned subsidiary company, BRIT School Productions Limited (company no, 2B46847T),
was incomparaled in England and Wabss on 23 August 1903,

Consolidaied fnancial siatements have not been prepared as the Trusleas are of the opinian thal B results
of the subsidiary are not material 1o an understanding of he School's inancial sialements,

& summary of tha results for the year and the position at the yoar end of BRIT Schoal Productions Limited is
shown below,

Haoldings of mone than 20%
The Schond holds rmone an 20% of the share capital of tha following underakings:
Campany Country of registration or Shares hald
incorparation
Class 85
Subsldiary undertakings
BRIT School Productions Limitad (D2E46847T)  Englind & Wilas Ordinary 100

The aggregats amount of capital and reserves and fhe resulls of these undertakings for the last ralevant
financlal year ware as follows:

Capital and  Profiti{loss)
reserves  for the year

Principal activities £000 £'000
BRIT Schoof Productions Limiad (02B46847)  Suppon activities o pedorming
aris i =
Daebitors
D4 2023
E° 0 E£'000
Trade deblors o477 212
Amounts owed by subsidian 10 =
WAT recowvarable 1B4 135
Oiher deblors . 13
Prapaymants and accruad incoma a1 A4

1,532 1,174

=l =
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16

i

148

Craditors: amounts falling due within ona yaar

Met abligations under finance lease and hire purchasa contracts
Tradhe cradilors

Other taxation and soclal securnily

Oither creditorns

#ccruals and deferred incorme

Craditors: amounts falling due after more than one year

Mel obdigations under finance leases and hire purchass contracts

Met obligations under finance leases and hire purchase contracts
Repayable within one year

Rapayable batwean one and five years

Rapayable after five yaars

Lass: finance charges and inlerest allocated fo fubune accounting pariods

Mat abligations
Less: included in labilities faling dus within one year

Incleded above

Deferred incoma

Drefiarred income |8 inchsded within:
Creditors due withén one yaar

Deferred incoma al 1 Saptamiser 2023
Released from previous years
Resowrcas deferred in tha year

Duxferrad income al 31 Auguest 2024

2024
£'000

186
HT

1,306

L]
385

2024
£'000

320
7,065

7485

15
{115)

2023
£'000
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18 Deferred income (Continuad)

Deferred income al 31 August 2024 ts made up of E30k [2023: £E79k) of revenue donations, E1k (2023 £12k)
of trip incoma, £24k of ESFA rent reimbursemant income (2023 £24k) and Bril Kids and sundry income of

Eddk,
19 Funis
Balance at Gains, Balance at
1 Saptamber lasses and 3 August
2023 Income Expenditure transfers 204
000 £°000 £'900 £°000 £'000
Restricted general funds
General Annual Grant (GAG) - 25497 i2441) {156) -
Pupil pramium - 64 (54} 2 z
Other DIEE SFA grants - 7.528 {7529} - =
Oilher governmient granks - 256 (256) - -
Oiher restricied lunds - 4481 (481} - -
Ponsion fisene w - 63 {100) -
ar 10,937 {10,718} {256) -
Restricted fixed assel funds
Other fixed assel funds 14,534 - (733} 254 14,085
DIE group capital granis T8 TH2 (55) . 1,455
15,262 Ta2 (rad} 254 15,540
Tatal restricted funds 15,294 11,718 (11,506} 28 15,540
Unrastricted funds
Genaral funds 1,152 2878 {2,773) {12B) 1,129
Total funds 16,451 14,597 {14,279) {100) 16,660

|

The spacific purpeses for which the funds are to be applied are as follows:

Undar the funding agresmeant with the Secratary of State, the Academy Trust was not subject to a lirmit on the
amount of GAG that it could carmy fonvand at 31 August 20024,

All reatricted funds ars available 1o be spent Tor the purpases for which the funds weara recaived,

The Pension Reserve represents the Academy Trusts share of tha LGRS pension Tund deficit / surplus, as
vadued by the scheme's acluaries.

The Restricted Fixed Assal Fund represants the nel book value of fixed assels plus the unspent edemant of
Capital funds, less Capital Loans. When assets are purchasad, the fund is increased and depreciation
changes reduce the fund,

Linrestricted Funds represent balances hald st period end that can be applied al the discretion of the restees,
to suppard any of tha Academy's charitabbe purposes.

w7 =
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19

20

Funds

Comparative Infermation in respect of the preceding periad 15 as follows:

Rastricted ganeral funds
Ganveral Annual Grant {GAG)
Puspdl premium

Cither DFEESFA COVID-18
funding

Other Coronavines funding
Cither DIEESFA granits
Diher government granis
Oiher restricted funds
Penalon resansg

Restricted fived assot funds
Ol fieed assel funds
DIE growp capital grants

Total restricted funds

Unrestricted funds
General funds

Total funds

Analysis of net assots botwaeen funds

Fund balances at 31 August 2024 are

raprosontod by:
Intangible fixed assets
Tangible fixed assets
Current assels
Current ibilities
Fon-canrent liabilities

Total net assels

Balance at
1 Septembar

2022
E"Q00

Income
£'000

13,6822

Unrestricted
Funds
E£'000

2,355
(1,226)

1,129

Galns,

lossos amd
Exponcditure transfers
£'non £'000
(& 2300 {283)
{54) %
(67} -
(73] -
{7,070 -
(320) -
(B45) -
(1,530) 551
(12,199} 258
(B52) 293
(0] i
{BBZ) 3465
(13,081} G613
(1,916) (B2)

{14,987) 551
Raestrictad funda:
General  Fioed agget
£000 £0:0:0

- i
22834

A63
(B0)
{7.385)

- 15,540

(Contined]

Balance at
3 August
2023
£000

1.152

|

22,634
2,718
{1,308)
{7,385)

16,6649

4B -
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20 Analysis of net assets between funds {Continwed)
Unrestricted Restricted funds: Tatal

Funds Genaral  Fixed asaot Funds

£'000 E£'000 £ 000 £'000

21

Fund balances at 31 August 2023 are
reprogented by:

InManglbla fixed assets - - L+ 0
Tangibde fixed assals - - 22,483 22 483
Current assels 2,103 - 3i4 2417
Currant kabiithes [a561) - (80} {1.031)
Mon-current liabllities - - (7. 485) {7 A465)
Panshon schemea assel - ar - ar
Total net assals 1.152 ar 15,242 16,451

Pension and similar obligations

The School's empdoyess belong o bwo principal pansion schames: the Teachers’ Pansion Scheme England
and Wabes [TPS) for academic and related sfaff; and the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) for non-
teaching stall, which i3 managed by London Bosough of Croydon. Both are multi-empéoyver defined baedil
schemas,

The kates! actuarial vaduation of tha TPS related to the peiod ended 31 March 2020, and that of the LGPS
related to the period ended 31 March 2022,

Conlributions amounting to £175k were payable to the schemes ai 31 Awsgust 2024 (2023 E152k) and e
included within credilons,

Toachers' Pension Schama

Introduction

The Teachers' Pansion Scheme (TPS) is a statutory, contribulory, defined benefit schema, govemed by the
Tapchers' Penslon Scheme Regulations 2014, Membership s auvlomalic for leachaers in acadamiy nests. AN
teachars have the oplion o opl oul of the TPS following enrolmant,

The TPS is an unfunded scheme o which bath the member and amployar makes contribations, as a
percentage of salsry, These contributions are cradited lo the Exchequer. Reliremant and olher pension
banafits are paid by public lunds provided by Parkament.

Valuation of the Teachers' Pension Schemi

T Governmant Actuary, using normal actuanal principles, conducts a formad sctuarial review of tha TPS in
accordance with the Public Senice Pensions (Valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Directions 2014 published
by HM Treasury every 4 years. The alm of the review (= 10 enaure scheme costs are recognised and managed
approgriataly and tha review specifias the level of fulure conribulions,

- 49 -
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Fal

Pansion and similar obligations [Continued)

Acluarial scheme valuations ane dependent on assumptions aboul the value of future casis, design of benelits
and many ofher factors, Tha latest actuarial valuation of the TPS was conied oul as at 31 March 2020. Tha
valuation repart was published by the Depariment for Education on 27 Oclober 2023, with the SCAPE rabe,
sel by HMT, applying a notlonal investment retumn based on 1,7% above the rate of CPI. The key alameants of
the valuation outcome ana:

« Employer confribution rates sel al 28.68% of penslonable pay (ncluding a 0.08% adminisiration
levy), This iz an Increase of 5% in employer confributions and tha cost controd resull ks such That no
changa in mamber benafits is needed.

« Total scheme Eabliities (pensions currently in payment and the estimated cost of future benefits) for
senvice lo the effective date of £262,000 million and nobional assats (estimated Tuture contributions
togethar with the notional imvestments held at the valuabion data) of £222 200 milbon, ghing a
notpnal pasl servica deficit of £29,800 mdlion,

The result of this valuation will be implementad from 1 Aprl 2024, The next valuation result 1s due to be
implarmentad from 1 April 2028,

The amployer's penslon costs pald to the TPS in the period amounted to £1,040k (2023 £881k),
A copy of the valuation repon and supponing documentation is on the Teachers' Pansions wabsita,

Linder the definitions set out In FRS 102, the TPS is an unfunded multi-employer pension scheme, The
School s unable 1o idanlify its share of the underlying assats and liabilities of the plan, Accardingly, the Schaol
has laken advantage of the exemption in FRS 102 and has accountad for its contributions to the scheme as if
it were a dafined conlribution scheme. The School has sat out above the Information available an the schame.

Local Government Pension Schemea

The LGPS is a funded dofined bonefil pension schame, with the azsets held in separste trustes-administersd
fumds. The lotal contributions are as nobted below, The agreed contrbution rates for fulure years ane 16.6% for
emplovers and 5.5% (o 12.5% for employees.

Parfiament has ageeed, al the request of the Secretary of State for Education, 1o a guarantes that, in the evant
of academy closwe, outstanding Local Governmenl Pension Scheme Eabilifes would be mal by the
Department for Education. Tha guarantes came into forca on 18 July 2013 and on 21 July 2022, the
Departmeant for Education reaffirmed its commilment o the guarantee, with a parliamentary minute published
on GOV.LK.

Total contributions made 2024 2023

E'Don £'000
Ermployver's contribulions 444 353
Employais’ confribubions 185 182
Total contrbwulions %} 1%

ll
Ii
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21 Pension and similar obligations (Continuad)
Principal actuarial assumptions 2024 2023

W B

Rate of incresse in salanies 2.65 3.00

Rate of incressa for pensions In paymantinfation 2.65 .00
Discount rate for schame liahilities 5.00 5.2

CPI inflation (%) 2.65 3.00

The current madality assumptions include sufficlant allowancs for futura improvements in mortality rates. The
assurmed life expectalions on relirement age 65 ars:

2024 2023

Years Years
Retiring today
- Males 226 227
- Females 24.7 24.7
Retiring In 20 years
= Maleg 220 22.2
- Females 256 25.6
Sensitivity analysis
Scheme liabiliies would have been affecied by changes in assumplions as Tollows:

2024 2023

£"000 £
Discoun rate - 0.1% 11,142 11,576
Life expectancy + 1 year 11,339 11,762
Salary rate + 0,1% 10,909 11,372
Pixngions rade + 0.1% 11,141 11,5648
Defined benefil pension schema net asset 2024 2023

E'000 E£'000
Schema assels 13,193 11,397
Scheme abligations {10,903) {10,038}
Mel asseal 2,280 1,358
Festriclion on schame assats (2, 280) (1,322}
Total liabilityfassel) recognised . ar

«51=
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21 Pension and similar cbligations

The School's share of the assets in the scheme

Equilies
Bonds
Cash
Propesty

Tolad markat wabue of assats
Resftriction on schame assats

Mel Bssals recognised

The aclual returmn on schema assels was £1,434,000 {2023: £105,000),

Amount recognised In the statement of flmancial activities

Curmant sarvice cosi
Interest incomea
Interest cost

Tolal amaowent recognised

2024
Fair value
£0:040

g7y
2,639

396
1,451

13,193
{2,280

10,803

2024
£°0:0:0

454
(B0}
531

343

{Continuad})

2023
Falr walue
£'000

a7
1,709

342
1,368

11,397
{1,322)

10,075

£°0:0:0

1,924
{473)

The ned gain recognisad on scheme assels has been reslricled becausa the full pension swrpdes is not

aexpacied 1o be recoverad (hrough refunds or reduced conlributions in the Tulune,

Changes In the present value of defined benefit abligations

AL 1 Seplember 2023
Cusrrendl 2andica cost
Imarag] cost

Employes contribulions
Actuarial gain

BenaMs pald

AL 31 August 2024

2024
£ 000

2023
£'000

9,964
699
435
182

(918)
(223)

10,038

- 57 .
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21 Pansion and similar obligations

Changes in tha fair value of the School’s shara of scheme assets

Al T Soptember 2023
Intergst incame
Actuarial (gainfioss
Emplayer conributions
Employas contributicng
Banafits paid

AL 31 August 2024
Restriction on schems assaets

Mt assels recognised

2024
£000

11,387
G012
B32
44
185

(268)

13,183

{2,260

10,9003

22  Reconcillation of net incomal/{expenditure) to nat cash flow from operating activitles

Mid incomed{axpanditure) for the reporling paried (as per tha
alatemant of financial activitios)

Adjusted for:

Capltal granta from DIE and ather capital ineome
Invesinmant income raceivabla

Finance costs payable

Defined benefil pension cosls less conlribulions payable
Defised benafit pension scharme finance income
Depreciation of tangible fixed assels
Amartisation of intangible fixed assets

Decrease in slocks

(hncraasa) in deblors

Increase in credilons

Met cash provided by operating activities

23 Analysis of changes in net debt

Cash
Fimance lease obligations

2024

Hotes £0:00
B
(Faz)
(1] (31}
278

21 a8
21 {71}
TaG

12 2
{a58)

275

425

1 Seplember  Gash flows

203

£'000 £000
1,243 (57)
{7, 545) BO
{6,302} 23

{Continued)

2023
000

10,880
473
(354)
353
182
{223)

11,307
{1,322)

10,075

{1,175)

{640)
i2)
278
1,588
(38)
840
2
3
(883)
58

251

31 August
2024

£'000

1,186
{7 465)

(6,279)

« 03 =
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24 Leng<erm commitmonts

ar

Oparating leasas
Al 31 August 2024 the lotal of the School's future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable oparating
leagas was!

i P 2023
£ e £ 000
Amounis dus within one wesr & 13
Armecuanis dus in twe and five years - 1]
i ]

Capltal commitments
2024 2023
E'000 E'000
Expanditura contracted for but not provided in the Finencial Siatemants 363 N4

AL 31 August 2024, tha Trusl was commilied to compleling a capital progact, fundad by CIF incoma with tolal
axpecied costs of EA7TK. Cosla of £514k were Incusrad duing the year, with anticipated costs o complation
as al 31 Avgust 2024 of E363k.

Ralated party transactions

Chaiing 10 thee nalure of the School and the composilion of the board of trustoes being drawn freen local public
and private seclor crgandsations, ransactons may take place with organtsations In which the trustees have an
interest. The following relaled pary ransaclions took placa in the finandal perod,

The: School received donated incoma of Enil (2023: £21,000] fram Trustes, J. Bargar,

The School recaived donabed income of Enil {2023 E£20,000) from Trusiee, G, Jumboe.

The Schood received donated income of £360 (203 - £380) ram Trustes, M Crowa.

The School received E450,000 (2023: £735,728) from its sponsor, the British Record Industry Trust (the BRIT
Trust). Twe of the BRIT Trusl's Trusteas wena also Trusteas of the Schoal at some point of the yaar,

The school alse mecelved 8 donation of £1,894 from s trading subskdiary and loaned £10,034 o tha
subsidiary. An amound of E10,034 remains cadslanding al the year ¢nd,

Iry aceapting lhese donations, the School has nal breached any of the requinements of ESFA' Acadenmy Trust
Handbook 2023, which appdy to tha School despite its stetus as a schoaol,

Mambers® Hakbility

Each membar of tha charitabla company undartakes o contribute to tha assels of tha company in tha evant of
il bedng wound up while he or she is & mamber, or within one year after ha or she ceases to ba a member,
such amound as may be required, not excaading £10 for the dedds and liabilities contracted before he or she
caases o ba a membear,
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28 Agency arrangements

The School distibuies 16-189 bursary funds o sludents as an agent for the ESFA. In the accounling pesiod
ending 31 fugust 2024 the School had a brought forward balance of EASK (2023: £85k), rectived ES4k (2023
£83k) and dishursed £92k (2023 E79k) from the fund. An amount of £81k (2023 £89k) is incheded within
crisdilong: armaounts Ralling dus n less than o ybar,

b addition, the School paid bursaries tolalling MIL (2023: EGK) to students from Tunds received from the BRIT
Trusi for this purpose.







